
 CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AGENDA OF COUNCIL MEETING  

JULY 19, 2022 AT 10:00 AM 

This is a proposed agenda which is subject to change by Mayor and Council without further notice. 

 

ROLL CALL……..FLAG SALUTE……..MOMENT OF SILENCE. 
 

MINUTES: APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 5, 2022  

 

PROCLAMATION:  James Kane, 2022 NJ State Non-Public B Javelin Champion 

 

COMMUNICATIONS:   
Receive & File: 

NEW JERSEY TRANSIT, RE:  Federal Financial Assistance, Public Comment Period to August 15 

NEW JERSEY DEP, RE:  CAFRA Permit, BG Capital, Seasonal Tourism Structures/Seaport Pier   

 

Approve & File: 

SPECIAL EVENT, RE:  National Night Out, August 2  

SPECIAL EVENT, RE:  Heart of Surfing, August 6 

SPECIAL EVENT, RE:  National Lighthouse Day, August 7 

 

Approve & File With State: 

ANGLESEA IRISH SOCIETY, RE:  Social Affair Permit Application, Boots @ Beach Festival, Sept. 16-18 

ANGLESEA IRISH SOCIETY, RE:  Social Affair Permit Application, Irish Fall Festival, Sept. 23-25 

 

REPORTS: 

Various Depts. 

 

ORDINANCES: 

Ord. 1882 (2nd Reading) – Amending Chapter 276, Land Development 

Ord. 1883 (1st Reading) – Bond Ordinance Capital Improvements 

Ord. 1884 (1st Reading) – Capital Improvement Ordinance  

Ord. 1885 (1st Reading) – Amending Chapter 138, Beaches 

 

RESOLUTIONS: 

1. Cancelling Amounts on Sewer Accounts (Leaks) 

2. Return of Balance of Escrow Deposit – Ruoff/Gardner 

3. Authorizing Reduction of 2022 Lease Payment for Hot Dog Vendor Location 

4. Authorizing Advertisement of RFP for Communications Management Concession 

5. Authorizing Application and Acceptance of NJDCA Grant – Firefighter Turnout Gear 

6. Approving Adoption of Technology Practices Policy 

 

VOUCHER LIST/FINANCE: Authorizing payment of all approved vouchers    

    

COUNCIL: 

PUBLIC: 

ADJOURNMENT:  
 

Next Regular Meeting:  Tuesday, August 2, 2022 @ 10:00 AM  













































































































































































CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1885 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 138, BEACHES 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of North Wildwood in the County of 

Cape May, State of New Jersey, as follows: 

Section One.  The portions of Ordinance 334, as amended, that have been codified in 

§138-3 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood are hereby supplemented to the extent that 

§138-3 shall henceforth include an additional paragraph, which shall be codified as §138-3U and 

which shall read as follows: 

U.  To ride a bicycle upon the beaches of the City of North Wildwood, with 

the following exception:  

1) Bicycles may be permitted on the beaches of the City of North 

Wildwood from 6:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m., and from 5:30 p.m. to 

10:00 p.m. 

Section Two.  If any portion of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, that determination shall have no effect upon the remainder of this 

Ordinance, which shall remain valid and operable. 

Section Three.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance, 

to the extent of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are repealed.               

Section Four.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and 

publication as provided by law. 

 

 

                 ___________________________ 

      Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________ 

W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 

Introduced:  July 19, 2022     
Advertised:   July 27, 2022  
Hearing/Final: August 16, 2022 
Advertised:  August 24, 2022  
 

 



 

 
 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1884 

 
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF 

VARIOUS HEAVY EQUIPMENT FOR THE CITY OF NORTH 

WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW 

JERSEY, APPROPRIATING $600,000 THEREFOR FROM 

CAPITAL -RESERVE TO PAY DEBT SERVICE FOR THE 

FINANCING THEREOF 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY (not less than two-thirds of 

all members thereof affirmatively concurring) AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1. The improvement described in Section 2 of this ordinance is hereby 

authorized to be undertaken by the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, New 

Jersey (the “City”) as a general improvement.  For the improvement or purpose described in 

Section 2, there is hereby appropriated the sum of $600,000 from the City of North Wildwood 

Capital Reserve to pay debt, said sum being inclusive of all appropriations heretofore made 

therefor. 

Section 2.   The acquisitions hereby authorized and the purpose of the appropriations are 

as follows: 

 Acquisition of Various Heavy Equipment for the Public Works Department 

including, but not limited to, Roll Off Truck and Dumpster, Street Sweeper, and a 

Dingo, together with the acquisition of all materials and equipment and the 

completion of all work necessary therefor or related thereto for an amount not to 

exceed $600,000. 

 Section 3.  The following matters are hereby determined, declared, recited and stated: 

The improvement or purpose described in Section 2 of this bond ordinance is not a 

current expense.  It is an improvement or purpose that the City may lawfully undertake as a 



 

 
 

general improvement, and no part of the cost thereof has been or shall be specially assessed on 

property specially benefitted thereby. 

 Section 4.  The capital budget of the City is hereby amended to conform with the 

provisions of this ordinance to the extent of any inconsistency herewith.  The resolution in the 

form promulgated by the Local Finance Board showing full detail of the amended capital budget 

and capital program as approved by the Director of the Division of Local Government Services 

is on file with the Clerk and is available there for public inspection. 

 Section 5.  This bond ordinance shall take effect upon its publication and passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

            ___________________________ 
                                                                         Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
Introduced:    July 19, 2022 
Advertised:   July 27, 2022 
Hearing/Final: August 16, 2022  
Advertised:   August 24, 2022 
 
 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. 1883 

      
 
  BOND ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COMPLETION 

OF VARIOUS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF 
NORTH WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, 
NEW JERSEY; APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF $3,500,000 
THEREFOR; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OR BOND 
ANTICIPATION NOTES OF THE CITY OF NORTH 
WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW 
JERSEY, IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
UP TO $3,325,000; MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS 
AND COVENANTS; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
RELATED ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
FOREGOING 

      
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of 
Cape May, New Jersey (not less than two-thirds of all the members thereof affirmatively concurring), 
pursuant to the provisions of the Local Bond Law, constituting Chapter 169 of the Laws of 1960 of 
the State of New Jersey, as amended and supplemented ("Local Bond Law"), as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The purposes described in Section 7 hereof are hereby authorized as general 
improvements to be made or acquired by City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, New 
Jersey ("City"). 
 
 Section 2. It is hereby found, determined and declared as follows: 
 
(a) the estimated amount to be raised by the City from all sources for the purposes stated in 

Section 7 hereof is $3,500,000; and  
 
(b) the estimated amount of bonds or bond anticipation notes to be issued for the purposes stated 

in Section 7 hereof is $3,325,000; and 
 
(c) a down payment in the amount of $175,000 for the purposes stated in Section 7 hereof is 

currently available in accordance with the requirements of Section 11 of the Local Bond 
Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:2-11.  

 
 Section 3. The sum of $3,325,000, to be raised by the issuance of bonds or bond 
anticipation notes, together with the sum of $175,000, which amount represents the required down 
payment, are hereby appropriated for the purposes stated in this bond ordinance ("Bond Ordinance"). 
 
 Section 4. The issuance of negotiable bonds of the City in an amount not to exceed 
$3,325,000 to finance the costs of the purposes described in Section 7 hereof is hereby authorized.  
Said bonds shall be sold in accordance with the requirements of the Local Bond Law.  
 
 Section 5. In order to temporarily finance the purposes described in Section 7 hereof, 
the issuance of bond anticipation notes of the City in an amount not to exceed $3,325,000 is hereby 
authorized.  Pursuant to the Local Bond Law, the Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized to sell 
part or all of the bond anticipation notes from time to time at public or private sale and to deliver the 
same to the purchasers thereof upon receipt of payment of the purchase price plus accrued interest 
from their date to delivery thereof.  The Chief Financial Officer is hereby directed to report in writing 
to the governing body at the meeting next succeeding the date when any sale or delivery of the bond 
anticipation notes pursuant to this Bond Ordinance is made.  Such report must include the amount, 
the description, the interest rate and the maturity schedule of the bond anticipation notes sold, the 
price obtained and the name of the purchaser. 
 
 Section 6. The amount of the proceeds of the obligations authorized by this Bond 
Ordinance which may be used for the payment of interest on such obligations, accounting, 



-2- 

engineering, legal fees and other items as provided in Section 20 of the Local Bond Law, N.J.S.A. 
40A:2-20, shall not exceed the sum of $700,000. 
 
 Section 7. The improvements hereby authorized and the purposes for which said 
obligations are to be issued; the estimated costs of each said purpose; the amount of down payment 
for each said purpose; the maximum amount obligations to be issued for each said purpose and the 
period of usefulness of each said purpose within the limitations of the Local Bond Law are as 
follows: 
 

  
 

Purpose/Improvement 

 
Estimated
Total Cost 

 
Down 

Payment 

 
Amount of 
Obligations 

 
Period of 

Usefulness 

A. Construction and Reconstruction of Various Streets, 
Roads, and Bulkheads in the City, all as more 
particularly set forth in the information on file with 
the City Administrator, together with the acquisition 
of all materials and equipment and completion of all 
work necessary therefor or related thereto  

$1,500,000 $75,000 $1,425,000 10 years 

B. Completion of Various Improvements to Municipal 
Buildings and Grounds including, but not limited to, 
Beach Replenishment in the City, all as more 
particularly set forth in the information on file with 
the City Administrator, together with the acquisition 
of all materials and equipment and completion of all 
work necessary therefor or related thereto 

2,000,000 100,000 1,900,000 15 years 

 TOTAL $3,500,000 $175,000 $3,325,000  

 
 Section 8. Grants or other monies received from any governmental entity, if any, will be 
applied to the payment of, or repayment of obligations issued to finance, the cost of the purposes 
described in Section 7 above.  
 
 Section 9. The average period of useful life of the several purposes for the financing of 
which this Bond Ordinance authorizes the issuance of bonds or bond anticipation notes, taking into 
consideration the respective amounts of the bonds or bond anticipation notes authorized for said 
several purposes, is not less than 12.85 years.  
 
 Section 10. The supplemental debt statement provided for in Section 10 of the Local 
Bond Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:2-10, was duly filed in the office of the Clerk prior to the passage of this 
Bond Ordinance on first reading and a complete executed duplicate original thereof has been filed 
in the Office of the Director of the Division of Local Government Services in the Department of 
Community Affairs of the State of New Jersey.  The supplemental debt statement shows that the 
gross debt of the City, as defined in Section 43 of the Local Bond Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:2-43, is 
increased by this Bond Ordinance by $3,325,000 and that the obligations authorized by this Bond 
Ordinance will be within all debt limitations prescribed by said Local Bond Law.  
 
 Section 11.   The full faith and credit of the City are irrevocably pledged to the punctual 
payment of the principal of and interest on the bonds or bond anticipation notes authorized by this 
Bond Ordinance, and to the extent payment is not otherwise provided, the City shall levy ad valorem 
taxes on all taxable real property without limitation as to rate or amount for the payment thereof. 
 
 Section 12.   The applicable Capital Budget is hereby amended to conform with the 
provisions of this Bond Ordinance to the extent of any inconsistency therewith, and the resolution 
promulgated by the Local Finance Board showing full detail of the amended Capital Budget and 
Capital Program as approved by the Director of the Division of Local Government Services, is on 
file with the Clerk and available for inspection. 
 
 Section 13.   The City hereby declares its intent to reimburse itself from the proceeds of 
the bonds or bond anticipation notes authorized by this Bond Ordinance pursuant to Income Tax 
Regulation Section 1.150-2(e), promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
("Code"), for "original expenditures", as defined in Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2(c)(2), 
made by the City prior to the issuance of such bonds or bond anticipation notes. 
 
 Section 14. The City hereby covenants as follows: 
 
  (a) it shall take all actions necessary to ensure that the interest paid on the bonds 
or bond anticipation notes authorized by this Bond Ordinance is exempt from the gross income of 



-3- 

the owners thereof for federal income taxation purposes, and will not become a specific item of tax 
preference pursuant to Section 57(a)(5) of the Code; 
 
  (b) it will not make any use of the proceeds of the bonds or bond anticipation 
notes or do or suffer any other action that would cause the bonds or bond anticipation notes to be 
"arbitrage bonds" as such term is defined in Section 148(a) of the Code and the Regulations 
promulgated thereunder; 
 
  (c) it shall calculate or cause to be calculated and pay, when due, the rebatable 
arbitrage with respect to the "gross proceeds" (as such term is used in Section 148(f) of the Code) of 
the bonds or bond anticipation notes;  
 
  (d) it shall timely file with the Internal Revenue Service, such information report 
or reports as may be required by Sections 148(f) and 149(e) of the Code; and 
 
  (e) it shall take no action that would cause the bonds or bond anticipation notes 
to be "federally guaranteed" within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code. 
 
 Section 15. The improvements authorized hereby are not current expenses and are 
improvements that the City may lawfully make.  No part of the cost of the improvements authorized 
hereby has been or shall be specially assessed on any property specially benefited thereby. 
 
 Section 16. All ordinances, or parts of ordinances, inconsistent herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of any such inconsistency. 
 
 Section 17. In accordance with the Local Bond Law, this Bond Ordinance shall take 
effect twenty (20) days after the first publication thereof after final passage. 
 
 

 
___________________________ 

                                                                                    Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
Introduced:   July 19, 2022 
Advertised:   July 27, 2022  
Hearing/Final: August 16, 2022 
Advertised:   August 24, 2022 

 
 

(Effective September 14, 2022) 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. 1883 

      
 

Notice of Pending Bond Ordinance and Summary 
 
 The bond ordinance, the summary terms of which are included herein, was introduced and 
passed upon first reading at a meeting of the City Council of the City of the City of North 
Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, New Jersey, on July 19, 2022.  It will be further considered 
for final passage, after public hearing thereon, at a meeting of the City Council to be held at the 
City Council Room, 901 Atlantic Ave, North Wildwood, New Jersey on ___________, 2022 at 
_____ o’clock __M.  During the week prior to and up to and including the date of such meeting 
copies of the full ordinance will be available at no cost and during regular business hours, at the 
City Clerk’s office for the members of the general public who shall request the same.  The 
summary of the terms of such bond ordinance follows: 
 
Title:   BOND ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COMPLETION 

OF VARIOUS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF 
NORTH WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, 
NEW JERSEY; APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF $3,500,000 
THEREFOR; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OR BOND 
ANTICIPATION NOTES OF THE CITY OF NORTH 
WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW 
JERSEY, IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
UP TO $3,325,000; MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS 
AND COVENANTS; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
RELATED ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
FOREGOING 

 
  

 
Purpose/Improvement 

 
Estimated
Total Cost 

 
Down 

Payment 

 
Amount of 
Obligations 

 
Period of 

Usefulness 

A. Construction and Reconstruction of Various Streets, 
Roads, and Bulkheads in the City, all as more 
particularly set forth in the information on file with 
the City Administrator, together with the acquisition 
of all materials and equipment and completion of all 
work necessary therefor or related thereto  

$1,500,000 $75,000 $1,425,000 10 years 

B. Completion of Various Improvements to Municipal 
Buildings and Grounds including, but not limited to, 
Beach Replenishment in the City, all as more 
particularly set forth in the information on file with 
the City Administrator, together with the acquisition 
of all materials and equipment and completion of all 
work necessary therefor or related thereto 

2,000,000 100,000 1,900,000 15 years 

 TOTAL $3,500,000 $175,000 $3,325,000  

 
Appropriation:   $3,500,000 
Bonds/Notes Authorized: $3,325,000 
Grants:    N/A 
Section 20 Costs:  $700,000 
Useful Life:   12.85 years 
 
              
        W. SCOTT JETT, City Clerk 
 

This Notice is published pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:2-17. 

  



 
 

 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. 1883 

      
 

Bond Ordinance Statements and Summary 

 The bond ordinance, the summary terms of which are included herein, has been finally 
adopted by the City Council of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, New 
Jersey on ___________________, 2022 and the twenty (20) day period of limitation within which 
a suit, action or proceeding questioning the validity of such ordinance can be commenced, as 
provided in the Local Bond Law, has begun to run from the date of the first publication of this 
statement.  Copies of the full ordinance are available at no cost and during regular business hours, 
at the City Clerk’s office at the City Council Room, 901 Atlantic Ave, North Wildwood, New 
Jersey, for members of the general public who request the same.  The summary of the terms of 
such bond ordinance follows: 
 
Title:   BOND ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COMPLETION 

OF VARIOUS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF 
NORTH WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, 
NEW JERSEY; APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF $3,500,000 
THEREFOR; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OR BOND 
ANTICIPATION NOTES OF THE CITY OF NORTH 
WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW 
JERSEY, IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
UP TO $3,325,000; MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS 
AND COVENANTS; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
RELATED ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
FOREGOING 

 
  

 
Purpose/Improvement 

 
Estimated
Total Cost 

 
Down 

Payment 

 
Amount of 
Obligations 

 
Period of 

Usefulness 

A. Construction and Reconstruction of Various Streets, 
Roads, and Bulkheads in the City, all as more 
particularly set forth in the information on file with 
the City Administrator, together with the acquisition 
of all materials and equipment and completion of all 
work necessary therefor or related thereto  

$1,500,000 $75,000 $1,425,000 10 years 

B. Completion of Various Improvements to Municipal 
Buildings and Grounds including, but not limited to, 
Beach Replenishment in the City, all as more 
particularly set forth in the information on file with 
the City Administrator, together with the acquisition 
of all materials and equipment and completion of all 
work necessary therefor or related thereto 

2,000,000 100,000 1,900,000 15 years 

 TOTAL $3,500,000 $175,000 $3,325,000  

 
 
Appropriation:   $3,500,000 
Bonds/Notes Authorized: $3,325,000 
Grants:    N/A 
Section 20 Costs:  $700,000 
Useful Life:   12.85 years 
              
        W. SCOTT JETT, City Clerk 
 
 

This Notice is published pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:2-17. 



 

 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1882 
   

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING  
ORDINANCE 1177, AS AMENDED 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 1177, adopted May 19, 1994, has been codified in the Code of 

the City of North Wildwood as Chapter 276, Land Development; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood’s Land Development Ordinance establishes 

specific zoning districts throughout the City which identify and specify specific permitted and 

prohibited uses, area and bulk requirements governing the construction of said uses, and 

requirements governing overall development within said districts; and  

 WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood has established the R-1.5 zone which is a 

residential zoning district; and 

 WHEREAS, the purpose of the City’s R-1.5 zone seeks to permit accessory apartments 

as a conditional use in areas located between the City's traditional R-1 Zone and its more-intense 

commercial districts, thereby providing a transition between R-1 and commercial land uses while 

simultaneously providing for more-affordable housing in the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the R-1.5 zone was previously amended in order to allow for the 

construction of two-family dwellings as conditional uses so long as they are designed to appear 

as if they were a detached single-family dwelling and so long as they comply with the bulk 

requirements governing duplexes in the R-2 Zoning District; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of North Wildwood finds that allowing the 

development of two-family dwellings and/or single-family semi-detached dwellings in the R-1.5 

zone is inconsistent the City’s current Master Plan and with the overall purpose of the R-1.5 zone 

and same should be eliminated within the R-1.5 zone. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 

North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 

Section One.  The portion of Ordinance 1177, as amended, that has been codified in the 

Code of the City of North Wildwood at §276-15.1(C)(3) allowing two-family dwellings in the R-

1.5 zone is hereby deleted. 

Section Two.  If any portion of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, that determination shall have no effect upon the remainder of this 

Ordinance, which shall remain valid and operable. 

 Section Three.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance, 

to the extent of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are repealed.               



 

 

Section Four.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and 

publication as provided by law. 

      
 
      ________________________________ 
      Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
Introduced:   June 8, 2022      
PB Recommendation: June 30, 2022  
Advertised:  July 6, 2022   
Hearing/Final:  July 19, 2022  
Advertised:   July 27, 2022  
  



























CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION 

 

CANCELLING AMOUNTS ON SEWER ACCOUNTS 
 

WHEREAS, the City Tax Collector reports that certain sewer charges may be cancelled by reason of 
the fact they resulted from water leaks as determined by a plumber and verified by Wildwood Water Utility, or 
from meters that were running fast as determined by Wildwood Water Utility, and that these meters were 
subsequently repaired. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Members of Council of the City of 
North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey that the amount on the following sewer 
accounts may be cancelled: 
 
SEWER 
ADJUSTMENTS:       

   SEWER OVERAGE OVERAGE TOTAL   CREDIT 
ADDRESS  ACCT# YEAR BASIC 3rd Q AMOUNT  AMOUNT 

120 W 1ST AVE 2414-0 2022 125 61 2485.50 1864.13 
902 ATLANTIC AVE 3353-0 2022 35 0 175.00 131.25 
109 DELAWARE AVE 1838-0 2022 146 0 730.00 547.50 

 
      
      
Total     2,542.88 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OFFERED BY: ___________________                                    SECONDED BY: _______________________ 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY                                                                                       COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of 
the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 19th day of July, 2022. 
 
Dated:  July 19, 2022                                             Signed: _____________________________ 
                 W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 

Approved: __________________________    
                   Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Aye      Nay Abstain Absent  Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo     Koehler     
Rullo     Bishop     
Kane     Zampirri     
Del Conte          

             
               #       



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION   

 

AUTHORIZING REDUCTION OF 2022 LEASE PAYMENT ON HOT DOG 
VENDING LOCATION IN THE 1100 BLOCK OF JOHN F. KENNEDY BEACH 

DRIVE 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood leases out a hot dog vending location 
in the 1100 block of John F. Kennedy Beach Drive, known as Meter Space #96; and  
 

WHEREAS, during the spring of 2022 a beach replenishment project caused the 
beach in front of said vending location to be closed to the public for an extended period 
of time, causing the lessee to lose approximately 35% of the normal operating season; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Council deems it appropriate and fair to reduce the 2022 lease 
payment on this vending location by 35%. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the 
City of North Wildwood, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, that:  

 

1. All of the allegations of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference 
thereto as though the same were set forth at length. 

2. The lease payment due from the lessee of the hot dog vending location in the 
1100 Block of John F. Kennedy Beach Drive for the year 2022 is hereby 
reduced by 35%. 

3. The City Clerk shall calculate the total amount due for said location and 
advise the lessee of same. 

4. This resolution shall be annexed to and made a part of the current lease 
agreement for said location.  

 
 
 
 
 

OFFERED BY: __________________                 SECONDED BY: _______________________ 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY                                                                            COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of 
New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution 
adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 
19th day of July 2022. 
 
 

Dated:   July 19, 2022       Signed: ____________________________ 
        W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
 

Approved: __________________________  
 Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Aye      Nay Abstain Absent  Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo     Koehler     
Rullo     Bishop     

Kane     Zampirri     
Del Conte          

             



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING RETURN OF BALANCE OF ESCROW DEPOSIT 
 

WHEREAS, Christian Ruoff and Barbara Gardner had applied to the North Wildwood Planning Board 
requesting variance relief in connection with the proposed renovations, alterations and additions at the property 
located at 224 W. 2nd Avenue, a/k/a Block 156, Lot 3, in the City’s R-2 Zoning District, (Application #P-22-3-
4); and 
 

WHEREAS, the application was reviewed and it has been determined that no escrow deposit was 
necessary and, therefore, the entire escrow deposit may be returned 
 

WHEREAS, §276-67(E)(2) provides that unused escrow balances may be returned to the Applicant 
within 90 days upon written request by the applicant & as authorized by City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds submitted and escrowed was $2,000.00 and the Applicant has made 
written request for return of the unused balance, which amount the Chief Financial Officer of the City of North 
Wildwood has calculated to be $2,000.00. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 

1. All of the allegations of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 
same were set forth at length. 

 
2. The Chief Financial Officer be and hereby is authorized to return the unused escrow balance as aforesaid 

to the Applicant. 
 

3. The Chief Financial Officer and such other officials as are necessary be and they hereby are authorized 
to take such actions that are necessary and proper in order to effectuate the purposes and intent of this 
resolution. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
OFFERED BY: _______________________        SECONDED BY: _________________________ 
********************************************************************************* 

I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 19th day of July 2022. 

 
      Dated: ___July 19, 2022_______                  Signed: ___________________________ 
                   W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
                         
 
       APPROVED: ____________________________ 
         Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 

                        Aye     Naye     Abstain   Absent                                                      Aye     Naye     Abstain   Absent 
Tolomeo                 Koehler 
Rullo                                                                                  Bishop 
Kane                                                                                   Zampirri 
Del Conte 

 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

ADOPTION OF MUNICIPAL TECHNOLOGY PRACTICES 
POLICY OF THE CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood, in conjunction with the Atlantic and 
Cape May Counties Joint Insurance Fund (ACMJIF), has developed a Municipal 
Technology Practices Policy for the City of North Wildwood; and  
 

WHEREAS, the ACMJIF has deemed the North Wildwood Municipal 
Technology Practices Policy to be in compliance and that it meets all of the requirements 
in accordance with the insurance standards.  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the governing body of the City of North 
Wildwood, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, that:  

1. The Municipal Technology Practices Policy of the City of North Wildwood is 
hereby adopted.  

2. The City Administrator is hereby designated and authorized to coordinate annual 
training associated with the Municipal Technology Practices Policy. 

3. The North Wildwood Municipal Technology Practices Policy shall be annexed 
to and made part of this Resolution. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OFFERED BY: __________________ SECONDED BY: _______________________ 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY                                                        COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of 
New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution 
adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the      
19th day of July, 2022. 
 

Dated: July 19, 2022     Signed: _____________________________ 
        W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 

 
Approved: __________________________  
 Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 

 
 Aye      Nay Abstain Absent  Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo     Koehler     
Rullo     Bishop     

Kane     Zampirri     
Del Conte          

             # 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEL Cyber Risk 

Management Program 
 
 
 
 

2nd Edition 
March 8, 2021 

Version 2.1 – 1/1/22 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Program 

 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

 
The Municipal Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund (MEL) has provided its members with cyber insurance 
coverage since 2013.  The MEL has embarked on creating a cyber risk management framework to assist 
members in managing this evolving risk through the development of a set of minimum technology proficiency 
standards.   The MEL established a Cyber Task Force to deploy cyber education, release a cyber risk 
management framework and monitor the cyber risk of its members.   The task force is comprised of 
commissioners, risk managers, executive directors and other professionals, and it partnered with the 
Bloustein Local Government Research Center at Rutgers University. 

 
The MEL recognizes that much of the terminology and technical aspects of the minimum standards might not 
make sense to everyone; therefore, it is critical this program be reviewed and enacted on with the assistant 
of a technology expert.   Your technology expert should guide your officials in determining what your 
organization needs to do to comply. 

 
While all members are covered by cyber insurance, the per claim deductible as of 1/1/2022 is $25,000. 
Members become eligible for up to $25,000 reimbursement of their deductible by achieving compliance with 
the program.  Tier 1 = $10,000 reimbursement, Tiers 1 & 2 = $20,000 reimbursement, and Tiers 1, 2 & 3 = 
$25,000 reimbursement. 

 
In order to qualify for the deductible reimbursement, follow these steps: 

1.   Submit the Certification checklist.  All items must be “Yes” in order to comply; you may submit any 
“No” or “Not Applicable” responses for consideration with detailed explanations. 

2.   At the time of a claim, submit the Deductible Reimbursement checklist and provide the supporting 
documentation requested in the checklist. 

 
PLEASE NOTE, any item not at 100% may make you ineligible for deductible reimbursement. 

 
Many of the minimum standards involve little or no cost (i.e., activating Microsoft Defender software on 
Windows 10 machines meets the anti-virus requirements), while others will incur costs (cloud-based services, 
i.e., Microsoft Office 365, Google Office, subscription-based cloud backup).  In all cases, the program is 
designed considering the limited budgets of the members, and so the minimum standards will provide the 
most security for the lowest cost. 

 
Keep in mind, these minimum standards will not eliminate all technology risks.  The standards are only 
minimums, which will provide a strong level of protection if effectively carried out; however, cyber risks 
constantly evolve.  This means you must constantly monitor your cybersecurity posture so your organization 
can respond to new threats and risks as warranted. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Program 

 

 

 

PROGRAM CONTENTS 
 

 

1. Getting Started ......................................................................................................................Page 4 
 

 
2. Minimum Technological Proficiency Standards …………………. ................................Page 5 

 

 
 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 

 

Master Technology Practices Policy ............................................................................. Appendix 1 
 
 

Cybersecurity Incident Response Plan ........................................................................ Appendix 2 
 
 

Initial Minimum Technological Standards Certification .......................................... Appendix 3 
 
 

Deductible Reimbursement Application ..................................................................... Appendix 4 
 
 

Additional Security Practices to Consider .................................................................. Appendix 5 
 
 

Infographic Overview of Cyber Insurance Reimbursement Plan ........................... Appendix 6 
 
 

Third-Party Security Questionnaire ............................................................................ Appendix 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Program 

 

 

 

Getting Started! 
 
 

1.   GET A TECHNOLOGY EXPERT! 
 

2.   Review the Cyber Risk Management Program with your technology expert. 
 

3.   Develop a plan, timetable and budget to implement the standards. 
 

4.   Once implemented, complete the Certification checklist. 
 

5.   Establish a process to at least annually review your technology risks, score how 

the organization is managing them and ensure the program continues to be met. 
 

 
 

Want to learn more about technology risks? See the work done by the Rutgers Bloustein Local 

Government Research Center on Technology Risk or the MEL Cyber webpages: 
 
 
 

MEL: https://njmel.org/mel-safety-institute/resource-center/public-officials/public-officials-cyber 

risk-control/ 
 
 
 

Rutgers Bloustein: http://blousteinlocal.rutgers.edu/managing-technology-risk/ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

http://blousteinlocal.rutgers.edu/managing-technology-risk/


MEL Cyber Risk Management Program 

 

 

 

 
 

Tier Subject Requirements Comments 
1 Information 

Backup 
1. Use of standardized system images or virtualized desktops 

2. Application, Operating System and Network Configuration Software: Back-up 

copy of current versions must always be available with a copy stored off- 

premises 

3. Locally Stored Data (including MS 365, Google Workspace and similar): 

a. Daily incremental backups with minimum of 14 days of versioning 

on off-network device. 

b. Weekly, off-network, off-premises full backup of all data. 

c. All backups are spot-checked monthly. 

4. Cloud-Based Applications and Data: Must meet the same standards as the 

Locally Stored Data. 

5. Third-Party Application Data: Vendor must meet the same standards as the 

Locally Stored Data. 

1. Images  and  virtual  desktops  must  be  kept  current  with 
manufacturer patches. 

2. Back-up  such  software  or  have  current  installation  files 
available. 

3. Backup all locally stored data to local, cloud or off-network 
devices.  MS 365/Google cloud-based and locally stored files 
require a separate local or cloud-based backup. As this applies 
to all non-application software, consider cloud storage data. 

4. Includes  Azure,  Google  Cloud,  AWS,  etc. Cloud  service 
application   and   data   files   must   be   backed-up   using 
appropriate cloud services. 

5. Obtain in writing the backup practices used by application 
vendors, and ensure they meet these practices or provide 
equivalent protection. 

 
Consider utilizing FedRamp certified service providers/products. 

1 Patch 
Management 

1. Keep   all   operating   software,   application   software   and   infrastructure 

equipment current with latest versions. 

2. Use automatic updating where practicable, particularly as related to security 

patches. 

3. Install all security and critical updates and patches as soon as prudent and 

practicable following release. 

4. Annually review all non-standard applications for possible 

replacement/upgrade. 

1. No comment 
2. No comment 
3. System administrators need  to coordinate patch  upgrades 

with applications residing on systems managed by third 
parties to ensure upgrades will not disable their applications. 
Consider a procedure for these upgrades/patches when 
Technology Manager may not be available (i.e. vacation). 

4. Outdated or non-supported operating systems and software 
should not be used unless there is no practical alternative 
available, in which case appropriate steps must be taken to 
mitigate potential security threats. 

1 Defensive 
Software 

1. Antivirus and firewalls enabled for all desktops and laptops 

2. Antispam and antivirus filters enabled for the mail server 

3. Firewall enabled on all active ports, unused ports closed, antivirus enabled and 

antimalware enabled for network servers that connect to the internet 

4. Firewall rules and policies need to be reviewed or reassessed at least twice per 

year 

5. Microsoft Office applications open all downloaded files in “Protected Mode” 

1. Should  have  automatic  updates.  Microsoft  Windows 
comes with a preloaded firewall. 

2. No comment 
3. All  network  servers  must  have  antimalware  software 

running with automatic updates. 
4. No comment 
5. No comment 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Program 

 

 

 

 
 

1 Security 
Awareness 
Training 

All computer users receive annual training of at least one hour. Training includes, but 
is not limited to: 
1. Malware Identification 

2. Password construction 
3. Identifying and responding to security incidents 
4. Social engineering attacks 

An expert should perform the training in either virtual or in-person 
format, which includes the various online training services.  Best 
practice (although not required) is to perform training each quarter. 
Phishing testing is highly recommended twice per year. 

 
You may want to work with your counsel on an employee policy 
whereby access is removed or other actions taken for not 
completing/failing the training 

1 Password Must adopt a Technology Password Policy that at least meets the standards set in the 
MEL’s Password Policy, at a minimum, or meet the NIST Password Standards 800-63B 
(03/02/2020 Updates). 

NIST: https://pages.nist.gov/800-63-3/sp800-63b.html 

1 Email Warning Add a clear and obvious automatic warning label to all emails coming from outside of 
your organization. 

No comment 

1 Cyber Incident 
Response Plan 

Management/Governing Body adopts a cybersecurity incident response plan to direct 
staff and guide technology management decision making when a cybersecurity 
incident takes place, which must include at a minimum the items in the MEL 
Cybersecurity Incident Response Plan. 

See the MEL’s template Incident Response Plan. 
 
The Plan should be annually reviewed, tested and updated. 

1 Technology 
Practices Policy 

Management/Governing Body adopts a Technology Practices Policy, which must 
include at a minimum each of the subject items outlined in the MEL Cyber Risk 
Management Program, as respects Tier 1. 

See the MEL’s Technology Practices Policy template.   The Policy 
should be annually reviewed and updated. 

1 Government 
Cyber 
Memberships 

1. Register with New  Jersey Cybersecurity &  Communications Integration Cell 
(NJCCIC) 

2. Register with Multi-State Information Sharing & Analysis Center (MS-ISAC) 

1. IT’S FREE! 
2. ALSO FREE! If you are/have a utility authority/department, also 

register for your respective ISAC, such as ICS-CERT (industrial 
controls), Water-ISAC (water/wastewater) or E-ISAC (electric). 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Program 

 

 

 

 
 

Tier Subject Requirements Comments 
2 Servers Servers are physically protected from unauthorized access Access-controlled rooms, locked cages, etc. 

2 Access 
Privilege 
Controls 

1. Users with administrator rights are limited to those who need them 

2. Non-administrator users are granted limited rights based on job function and 
responsibility 

3. Access rights are updated upon any personnel status change action 

4. Access rights for each individual are reviewed at least every six (6) months 

1. No comment 
2. No Comment 
3. This should be added to your personnel action form and 

routed to technology management 
4. No comment 

2 Technology 
Support 

Staff or contractors are available for technology guidance For vendors, a contract needs to be in place.  It does not suffice 
that the organization has the ability to call someone. 

2 Logging Logging must be setup for entire network/all devices, such as System, Application and 
Security logs. 

Consider utilizing log-monitoring tools. 

2 Protected 
Information 

Files with personally identifiable information (PII) and protected health information 
(PHI) are password protected or encrypted 

No comment 

2 Remote 
Access 

Utilize a Virtual Private Network (VPN) for all remote connections. This is only applicable if you allow remote access to your network 
(i.e. employees, vendors, etc.). 

2 Leadership 
Expertise 

Organization leadership has access to expertise that supports technology decision 
making (i.e., risk assessment, planning, and budgeting) 

This can be any combination of officials, employees, 
contractors/consultants or citizen volunteers 

2 Technology 
Business 
Continuity 
Plan 

Update your organization’s Emergency Management/Continuity of Government (CoG) 
plan to include digital assets and technology management. 

Address most items in your CoG in the Technology Practices Policy. 
Periodically perform tabletop exercises to ensure effective and 
efficient disaster response. 

2 Banking 
Controls 

Implement internal controls and controls with your bank: 

1. Establish procedures requiring multiple approvals for requests to change banking 
information. 

2. Establish procedures requiring multiple approvals and source verification for 
financial transaction requests over a certain threshold. 

Ensure compliance with NJDLGS Electronic Payroll and EFT/P-Card 
rules. 
1. No comment 
2. Consider setting a low amount, such as $5,000 

2 Technology 
Practices 

Adopt a Technology Practices Policy, which must include at a minimum each of the 
subject items in the MEL Cyber Risk Management Program, as respects Tier 1 and 2. 

See the MEL’s template Technology Practices Policy.   Annually 
review and update the Policy. 

2 Remote 
Access 

Adopt a Remote Access practice policy, which must at a minimum include the items in 
the MEL’s Remote Access Policy 

 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Program 

 

 

 

 
 

Tier Subject Requirements Comments 
3 Network 

Segmentation 
Network segmentation. Consider separating business units, but especially critical/sensitive 

units, such as finance, police and utilities. Utilities should consider 
an air-gap for their Industrial Control (ICS) / SCADA systems. 

 
Virtual and/or physical segmentation is acceptable. 

3 Logging Spot-check logs on at least a monthly basis. Logs should be spot-checked for accuracy and usability. 

3 Remote 
Access 

Enable MFA for login to the organization’s network, organization’s email service (if 
cloud-based) and with third-party applications passing/storing Protected Information. 

This is only applicable if you allow remote access to your network 
(i.e. employees, vendors, etc.).   It is also recommended to limit 
remote network access to only pre-approved devices with 
Network Access Control (NAC). 

3 Password 
Integrity 

Periodically test all email addresses against HaveIBeenPwned or a similar email breach 
service to determine if any emails have been compromised, and take necessary action 
to ensure integrity. 

MS-ISAC, NJCCIC and some vendors may be able to provide this 
testing. 

3 Third Party 
Risk 
Management 

Utilize the MEL’s 3rd Party Risk Assessment Tool for new/renewing contracts. This is  most applicable to certain vendors transmitting/storing 
confidential data, such as technology provider, payroll, HR, etc. 

 
You may also consider asking the vendor to become compliant 
with the MEL’s Cyber Risk Management Program. 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Certification 

MEL Cyber Risk Management - Tier 1 Certification 

 

 

 

Tier 1 
 
 
 

 
Information Back-Up 

 

1. Use of standardized system images or virtualized desktops.  

2. Back-up copy of all application, operating and network configuration software must be available.    

3. Daily incremental back-ups with a minimum of 14 days of versioning on off-network  

 device of all data files.  

4. Weekly, off-network, full back-up of all data files.  

5. All back-ups are spot-checked monthly.  

6. Third-party and cloud-based application data is backed-up to the same standards.  
 

 

Patch Management 
 

1.   Patch all operating an application software with the latest versions. 

2.   Use automatic updating where applicable, particularly as related 

to security patches. 

3.   All security and critical updates and patches are installed as soon as prudent and practicable 

following release. 

4.   The member annually reviews all non-standard applications for possible 

replacement/upgrade. 
 
 

Defensive Software 
 

1. Antivirus and firewalls are enabled for all desktops and laptops. 

2. Antispam and antivirus filters are enabled for the email server. 

3. Firewalls are enabled on all active ports, and unused ports are closed. 

4. Antivirus and antimalware enabled for network servers connecting to the internet. 

5. Firewall rules and policies are reviewed or reassessed at least twice per year. 

6. Microsoft Office applications open all downloaded files in “Protected Mode”. 
 
 

Security Awareness Training 
 

1. All computer users receive annual training of at least one (1) hour on at least the following topics:    

a.   Malware Identification 

b.   Password Construction 

c. Identifying Security Incidents 

d.   Social Engineering 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Certification 

MEL Cyber Risk Management - Tier 1 Certification 

 

 

 

Tier 1 
 
 
 
 

Password Strength 
 

1.   Password policy that minimally meets the requirements outlined in the 

Password Policy under the MEL’s Master Technology Policy v 2.2. 
 
 

Email Warning 
 

1.   Implemented an automatic warning label to all emails coming 

from outside of your organization. 

 

 

Cyber Incident Response Plan 
 

1.   Management/Governing Body adopts a cybersecurity incident response plan to direct staff    

and guide technology management decision making when a cybersecurity incident takes 

place. This must include at a minimum the items in the MEL’s Cybersecurity Incident 

Response Plan. 

 

 

Technology Practices Policy 
 

1.   Management/Governing Body adopts a technology practices policy, which must at a minimum    

include the items in the MEL’s Master Technology Policy v 2.2 respective to Tier 1. 
 
 

Government Cyber Memberships 
 

1.   Registered with the New Jersey Cybersecurity & Communications 

Integration cell (NJCCIC). 

2.   Registered with the Multi-State Information Sharing & Analysis Center 

(MS-ISAC) and any other ISAC relevant to your organization’s operations. 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Certification 

MEL Cyber Risk Management - Tier 1 Certification 

 

 

 

Tier 1 
 
 
 

 
This document must be signed by the mayor, municipal administrator, or municipal clerk (or director of 
entity if not a municipality) AND your technology expert. 

 
 
 
 

MEMBER ENTITY 
 

 
 

Print Name Title 
 
 
 
 

Signature Date 
 
 
 
 

TECHNOLOGY EXPERT 
 

 
 

Print Name Title 
 
 
 
 

Signature Date 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Certification 

MEL Cyber Risk Management – Tier 2 Certification 

 

 

 

 

Tier 2 
 
 
 

Server Security 
 

1.   Servers and network equipment are protected from unauthorized access. 
 
 

Access Privilege Controls 
 

1.   Users with administrative rights are limited to those who need them. 

2.   Non-administrator users are granted limited access rights based on job function 

and responsibilities. 

3.   Access rights are updated upon any personnel status change action. 

4.   Access rights for each individual are reviewed at least every six (6) months. 
 
 

Technology Support 
 

1. Has qualified staff or contractor(s) to provide technology support and 

guidance. 

 
 

System / Event Logging 
 

1. Has appropriate system and event logging is in place to detect and/or 

capture system/network performance and security anomalies. 

 
 

Protected Information 
 

1. Has a process that ensures all files containing Personally Identifiable 

Information (PII) or Protected Health Information (PHI) are password protected or encrypted. 
 
 

Remote Access 
 

1.   Requires the use of a Virtual Private Network (VPN) when remotely accessing 

the network or cloud-base applications. This also includes adopting a Remote Access 

Policy. 
 
 

Leadership Expertise 
 

1.   Senior management has access to resources with expertise in their respective 

fields to support technology decision making, i.e., risk assessments, planning, budgeting, etc. 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Certification 

MEL Cyber Risk Management – Tier 2 Certification 

 

 

 

 

Tier 2 
 
 

Technology Business Continuity 
 

1.   The Emergency Management/Continuity of Government (CoG) plan shall 

Include Technology Business Continuity Plan as part of the Disaster Recovery section. 
 
 

Banking Controls 
 

1.   Has implemented internal controls to minimize fraudulent banking 

transactions. 

 

 

Technology Practice Policy 
 

1.   The Management/Governing Body has adopted the MEL’s Technology Policy 

as respects to Tier 2. 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Certification 

MEL Cyber Risk Management – Tier 2 Certification 

 

 

 

 

Tier 2 
 

 
 

This document must be signed by the mayor, municipal administrator, or municipal clerk (or director of 
entity if not a municipality) AND your technology expert. 

 
 
 
 

MEMBER ENTITY 
 

 
 

Print Name Title 
 
 
 
 

Signature Date 
 
 
 
 

TECHNOLOGY EXPERT 
 

 
 

Print Name Title 
 
 
 
 

Signature Date 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Certification 

MEL Cyber Risk Management – Tier 3 Certification 

 

 

 

 

Tier 3 
 
 
 

Network Segmentation 
 

1.   The network is segmented, separating critical units (finance, police, utility, etc.) to 

minimize the spread of a cyber-attack. 

 
 

Remote Access 
 

1.   Implemented the use of Multi Factor Authentication (MFA) when remotely 

accessing resources and/or accessing third-party applications that pass or store 

protected and or financial information. 

 

 

Remote Access Policy 
 

1.   Adopted a Remote Access Policy that includes Multi-Factor Authentication 

and minimally includes the items in the Remote Access Policy – MFA in the MEL’s Master 

Technology Policy v2.2. 
 
 

Password Integrity 
 

1.   Implemented a process where employees can periodically validate their 

credentials against HaveIBeenPwned or a similar email breach service. 

 
 

System and Event Logging 
 

1.   Logs are reviewed every three (3) months by the IT professional. 
 
 

3rd Party Risk Management 
 

1.   Utilize the MEL’s 3rd Party Risk Assessment Tool to assess a vendor’s 

risk when issuing new or renewing contracts. 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Certification 

MEL Cyber Risk Management – Tier 3 Certification 

 

 

 

 

Tier 3 
 

 
 

This document must be signed by the mayor, municipal administrator, or municipal clerk (or director of 
entity if not a municipality) AND your technology expert. 

 
 
 
 

MEMBER ENTITY 
 

 
 

Print Name Title 
 
 
 
 

Signature Date 
 
 
 
 

TECHNOLOGY EXPERT 
 

 
 

Print Name Title 
 
 
 
 

Signature Date 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Deductible Reimbursement 

MEL Cyber Risk Management – Deductible Reimbursement 

 

 

 
 

Tier 1 
 

Information Back-Up 
 

1. Use of standardized system images or virtualized desktops.  

2. Back-up copy of all application, operating and network configuration software must be available.    

3. Daily incremental back-ups with a minimum of 14 days of versioning on off-network  

 device of all data files.  

4. Weekly, off-network, full back-up of all data files.  

5. All back-ups are spot-checked monthly.  

6. Third-party and cloud-based application data is backed-up to the same standards.  
 

 

Patch Management 
 

1.   The member patches all operating an application software with the latest versions. 

2.   The member uses automatic updating where applicable, particularly as related 

to security patches. 

3.   All security and critical updates and patches are installed as soon as prudent and practicable 

following release. 

4.   The member annually reviews all non-standard applications for possible 

replacement/upgrade. 
 
 

Defensive Software 
 

1. The member’s antivirus and firewalls are enabled for all desktops and laptops. 

2. The member’s antispam and antivirus filters are enabled for the email server. 

3. The member’s firewalls are enabled on all active ports, and unused ports are closed.    

4. Antivirus and antimalware enabled for network servers connecting to the internet. 

5. Firewall rules and policies are reviewed or reassessed at least twice per year. 

6. Microsoft Office applications open all downloaded files in “Protected Mode”. 
 
 

Security Awareness Training 
 

1. All computer users receive annual training of at least one (1) hour on at least the following topics:    

a.   Malware Identification 

b.   Password Construction 

c. Identifying Security Incidents 

d.   Social Engineering 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Deductible Reimbursement 

MEL Cyber Risk Management – Deductible Reimbursement 

 

 

 
Password Strength 

 
1.   The member has a password policy that minimally meets the requirements outlined in the    

Password Policy under the MEL’s Master Information Technology Policy v 2.2. 

 
 

Email Warning 
 

1.   The member has implemented an automatic warning label to all emails coming 

from outside of your organization. 

 
 

Cyber Incident Response Plan 
 

1.   Management/Governing Body adopts a cybersecurity incident response plan to direct staff    

and guide technology management decision making when a cybersecurity incident takes 

place. This must include at a minimum the items in the MEL’s Cybersecurity Incident 

Response Plan. 

 
 

Technology Practices Policy 
 

1.   Management/Governing Body adopts a technology practices policy, which must at a minimum    

include the items in the MEL’s Master Technology Policy v 2.2 respective to Tier 1. 
 
 

Government Cyber Memberships 
 

1.   Registered with the New Jersey Cybersecurity & Communications 

Integration cell (NJCCIC). 

2.   Registered with the Multi-State Information Sharing & Analysis Center 

(MS-ISAC) and any other ISAC relevant to your organization’s operations. 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Deductible Reimbursement 

MEL Cyber Risk Management – Deductible Reimbursement 

 

 

 

 

Tier 2 
 
 

Server Security 
 

1.   The member’s servers and network equipment are protected from unauthorized access.    
 
 

Access Privilege Controls 
 

1.   Users with administrative rights are limited to those who need them. 

2.   Non-administrator users are granted limited access rights based on job function 

and responsibilities. 

3.   Access rights are updated upon any personnel status change action. 

4.   Access rights for each individual are reviewed at least every six (6) months. 
 
 

Technology Support 
 

1. The member has qualified staff or contractor(s) to provide technology support and 

guidance. 

 

 

System / Event Logging 
 

1. The member has appropriate system and event logging is in place to detect and/or 

capture system/network performance and security anomalies. 

 

 

Protected Information 
 

1. The member has a process that ensures all files containing Personally Identifiable 

Information (PII) or Protected Health Information (PHI) are password protected or encrypted. 
 
 

Remote Access 
 

1.   The member requires the use of a Virtual Private Network (VPN) when remotely accessing    

the municipal network or cloud-base applications. This also includes adopting a Remote Access 

Policy. 
 
 

Leadership Expertise 
 

1.   The member’s senior management has access to resources with expertise in their respective    

fields to support technology decision making, i.e., risk assessments, planning, budgeting, etc. 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Deductible Reimbursement 

MEL Cyber Risk Management – Deductible Reimbursement 

 

 

 
Technology Business Continuity 

 
1.   The member’s Emergency Management/Continuity of Government (CoG) plan shall 

Include an Technology Business Continuity Plan as part of their Disaster Recovery section. 
 
 

Banking Controls 
 

1.   The member has implemented internal controls to minimize fraudulent banking 

transactions. 

 
 

Technology Practice Policy 
 

1.   The Management/Governing Body has adopted the MEL’s Information Technology Policy    

as respects to Tier 2. 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Deductible Reimbursement 

MEL Cyber Risk Management – Deductible Reimbursement 

 

 

 
 

Tier 3 
 
 

Network Segmentation 
 

2.   The member network is segmented, separating critical units (finance, police, utility, etc.) to    

minimize the spread of a cyber-attack. 
 
 

Remote Access 
 

2.   The member has implemented the use of Multi Factor Authentication (MFA) when remotely    

accessing municipal resources and/or accessing third-party applications that pass or store 

protected and or financial information. 

 
 

Remote Access Policy 
 

1.   The member has adopted a Remote Access Policy that includes Multi-Factor Authentication    

and minimally includes the items in the Remote Access Policy – MFA in the MEL’s Master 

Technology Policy v2.2. 
 
 

Password Integrity 
 

1.   The member has implemented a process where employees can periodically validate their    

credentials against HaveIBeenPwned or a similar email breach service. 
 
 

System and Event Logging 
 

1.   Logs are reviewed every three (3) months by the IT professional. 
 
 

3rd Party Risk Management 
 

1.   The member utilizes the MEL’s 3rd Party Risk Assessment Tool to assess a vendor’s 

risk when issuing new or renewing contracts. 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Deductible Reimbursement 

MEL Cyber Risk Management – Deductible Reimbursement 

 

 

 

 

Required Documentation 
 
 
 

All supporting documentation noted below are discussed in detail in the Minimum Technological 
 

Proficiency Standards. 
 
 
 

1.   Cyber training completion certificates or signed attendance 
2.   Screen shots of antivirus coverage 
3.   Screen shots of patches 
4.   Backup reports showing offsite backups 
5.   Copies of adopted Incident Response Plan and Technology Practices Policy 
6.   Email warning label screenshot 
7.   List of staff or contractors that support technology 
8.   Copies of adopted policies 

a.    Access, use, & control policy 
b.   PII & PHI encryption policy 
c. Password policy 
d.   Banking Control policy 
e.   Remote Access policy 
f. Technology Business Continuity policy 



MEL Cyber Risk Management Deductible Reimbursement 

MEL Cyber Risk Management – Deductible Reimbursement 

 

 

 

 
 

Signature 
 
 
 

 
This document must be signed by the mayor, municipal administrator, or municipal clerk (or director of 
entity if not a member) AND your technology expert. 

 
 
 
 

MEMBER ENTITY 
 

 
 

Print Name Title 
 
 
 
 

Signature Date 
 
 
 
 

TECHNOLOGY EXPERT 
 

 
 

Print Name Title 
 
 
 
 

Signature Date 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
1 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF  

NORTH WILDWOOD 
 
 
 
 

Master 
Technology Policy 

 
 

Version 2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEL Cyber Risk Management Program 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
2 

 

 

Document Management 
 
 
 

Document 
Owner: CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

Document 
Name: 

 

Master Technology Policy 

Version No: 2.2 

Adoption 
Date: 

 

3/8/2021 

Distribution 
Date: 

 

3/8/2021 

Author 
(Source): 

Lou Romero, Secure Data Consulting Services 
 

Lromero@SecureDataCS.com 

Last Review 
Date: 

 

3/8/2021 

Next Review 
Date: 

 

1/1/2022 

Data 
Classification: 

 

Sensitive 

mailto:Lromero@SecureDataCS.com


Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
3 

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

Document Management 2 

 
1. Policy Statement 5 

 
2. Reason for the Policy 5 

 
3. Scope 5 

 
4. Tier 1 Operational Policies 5 

 

6.1. Information Backup Policy 5 
 

6.2. Patch Management Policy 5 
 

6.3. Defensive Software Policy 6 
 

6.4. Security Awareness Training Policy 6 
 

6.5. Password Policy 7 
 

6.6. Email Warning Policy 8 
 

6.7. Cyber Incident Response Plan 8 
 

6.8. Technology Practice Policy 9 
 

6.9. Government Cybersecurity Membership Policy 9 

 
5. Tier 2 Operational Policies 10 

 

5.1. Server Security Policy 10 
 

5.2. Access Privilege Controls Policy 10 
 

5.3. Technology Support Policy 10 
 

5.4. System and Event Logging Policy 11 
 

5.5. Protected Information Policy 11 
 

5.6. Remote Access Policy 11 
 

5.8. Technology Business Continuity Plan Policy 12 
 

5.9. Banking Control Policy 13 

 
6. Tier 3 Operational Policies 13 

 

6.1. Network Segmentation Policy 13 
 

6.2. Remote Access Policy 13 
 

6.3. Password Integrity Policy 14 
 

6.4. System and Event Logging Policy 14 
 

6.5. Third-Party Risk Management Policy 15 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
4 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

It is essential to review these policies with a 
 

qualified and experienced Technology 

professional to ensure proper understanding 

and implementation. 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
5 

 

 

1. Policy Statement 
The Technology Policy defines the technology security practices necessary to ensure the security of the 

member’s technology systems and the information it stores, processes, and/or transmits. 
 
 

2. Reason for the Policy 
We act as the custodian of a wealth of sensitive information relating to the services we provide and the 

constituents we serve. We also rely on technology for much of our daily operations.   Accordingly, an 

appropriate set of security measures must be implemented to guard against unauthorized access to, 

alteration, disclosure, or destruction of this information and/or the technology systems that store, process, 

or transmit the information. 
 

This policy affirms our commitment to technology security by specifying the policies and standards necessary 

to achieve our security objectives, including compliance with all Federal and State requirements, as well as 

the Municipal Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund’s (MEL) Minimum Technology Proficiency Standards. 
 
 

3. Scope 
All technology systems and users are expected to comply with this policy. 

 
 

4. Tier 1 Operational Policies 
The member shall implement practices and policies that meet or exceed the MEL’s requirements at a 

minimum. 
 

6.1.    Information Backup Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Information Backup Policy is to ensure all data is regularly “backed up” and available 

when needed in the event of an incident (e.g., ransomware, flood, fire, etc.). If the network is virtual, meaning 

no local data is stored on devices, the requirement to backup devices does not apply. 
 

Requirements: 
 

a)    Use of standardized system images or virtualized desktops 

b)    A back-up of applications, operating systems and network configuration software must always be 

available 

c) Daily incremental backups with a minimum of 14 days of versioning on off-network device of all 

data 

d)    Weekly, off-network, full back-up of all data 

e)    All backups are spot-checked monthly 

f)     Third-party and cloud-based application data must also be backed-up to the same standards 
 
 

6.2.    Patch Management Policy 
 

Objective: 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
6 

 

 

The objective of the Patch Management Policy is to ensure all systems and applications are patched on a 

timely basis. Outdated and/or unsupported operating systems/applications shall not be used. 
 

Requirements: 
 

Patch all operating systems, applications, and infrastructure equipment with latest versions. 
 

a. Use automatic updating where practicable, particularly as related to security patches. 
 

b.    All security and critical updates and patches are installed as soon as possible following release. 

Following are examples: 
 

• Microsoft products (Windows, Desktops, Servers, Office, SQL Data Bases, Outlook, etc.) 
 

• Search engines (Google, Firefox, Microsoft Edge, Bing, etc.) 
 

• Technical infrastructure equipment that requires regular security updates (switches, firewalls, 
routers, etc.) 

 
• Third-Party applications (finance, animal license, construction, code enforcement, etc.) 

 

c. Annually review all non-standard applications for possible replacement/upgrade 
 
 

6.3.    Defensive Software Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Defensive Software Policy is to ensure all systems are protected by software that 

minimizes the likelihood of an attack by malicious individuals and/or malware that can compromise the 

confidentiality, integrity and availability of that system or information. 
 

Requirements: 
 

a.    Antivirus and firewalls are enabled for all desktops and laptops 

b.    Antispam and antivirus filters are enabled for all email servers 

c. Firewalls, switches, routers, and any interconnecting devices must ensure unused or non-active ports 

are closed 

d.    Antivirus and antimalware must be enabled for network servers that connect to the internet 

e.    Firewall rules and policies need to be reviewed at least twice per year 
f.     All Microsoft Office applications automatically open all downloaded files in “Protected Mode” 

 

 

6.4.    Security Awareness Training Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Security Awareness Training Policy is to ensure all personnel with access to the member’s 

technology assets receive appropriate cyber awareness education to reduce the likelihood of a cyber incident 

by understanding potential cyber threats. 
 

Requirements: 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
7 

 

 

All personnel with access to the member’s technology assets shall receive annual training of at least one 

hour that includes malware identification (email and websites), password construction, identifying security 

incidents, and social engineering. 
 
 

6.5. Password Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Password Policy is to ensure that users construct passwords that minimize the likelihood 

of unauthorized access to the member’s data and technology systems. 
 

Requirements: 
 

There are two options for compliance: 1) Follow the set of standards below; or 2) Follow the NIST Password 

Standards 800-63B (03/02/2020 Updates). 
 

Option 1 
 

1-   Change Frequency 

a.    Network users’ passwords are updated every three (3) months. 

2-   Construction 

b.    Passwords must be unique from passwords used on all other programs, websites, devices, etc., 

both personal and work. 

c.    Passwords must be a minimum of ten (10) characters. 

d.    Sequential or repetitive characters of more than two in succession are not to be permitted. 

      Example: “123”, “AAA”, etc. 

e.    Commonly used passwords are not to be permitted. 

      Example, “password”, “123456789”, “qwerty”, “abc123”, etc. 

      Full lists of commonly used passwords can be found in various cybersecurity reports. 

f.   Context-specific words are not to be permitted. 

      Example, the name of the application or website being logged into. 

3-   Previously Breached Passwords 

The member shall implement a process for identifying breaches containing user email addresses and 

utilize a breach corpus search for breached passwords, and such passwords shall be updated and not 

used again. 

4-   Failed Login Lockout 
The user account shall be locked out after five (5) failed attempts for a period of no less than 30 

minutes. In lieu of a timed lockout, the member may utilize a positive identification process to unlock 

the account. 
 

Option 2 (NIST) 
 

1-   Failed Login Lockout 
a.    Limit the number of failed authentication attempts 

2-   Password 
a.    Suggest users use “memorized secrets” instead of passwords 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
8 

 

 

b.   Memorized  Secrets  are  secret  values  intended  to  be  chosen  and  memorized  by  the  user; 
something you know 

3-   Length 
a.    8 characters minimum to at least 64 characters maximum 

4-   Change 
a.    Only change if there is evidence of compromise 

5-   Screening 
a.    Screen passwords against a list of known compromised passwords 

6-   Hints 
a.    Disable password hints and knowledge-based security questions 

7-   Composition Minimums 
a.    Skip character composition rules 

8-   Composition Restrictions 
a.    Do not allow 

i.   Dictionary words 
ii.   Repetitive or sequential characters 

iii.   Context-specific words (i.e. service name or username) 
9-   Copy & Paste 

a.    Allow copying and pasting passwords from a password manager 
10- Other Characters 

a.    Allow ASCII and UNICODE, including emojis 
 
 

6.6. Email Warning Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Email Warning Policy is to reduce spoofing emails and social engineering emails by 

identifying when emails are coming from outside the organization. 
 

 
 

Requirements: 
 

Example of email warning label: 
 

CAUTION: 
 

This email originated from outside of our email domain. Do not click on links or open attachments 

unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. If unsure, do not reply to this email 

and call the sender directly. 
 
 
 
 

6.7. Cyber Incident Response Plan 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Incident Response Plan is to define the methods for identifying, tracking, and responding 

to technology security incidents. 
 

Requirements: 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
9 

 

 

Please refer to the Incident Response Plan. 
 

 
MEL Cyber In ciden t 

Respon se Plan - v2.1 

 

 
6.8.    Technology Practice Policy 

 
Objective: 

 

The objective of the Technology Practice Policy is to ensure management/governing bodies adopt a 

Technology Practices Policy that includes all the subject items outlined in the MEL Cyber Risk Management 

Program. 
 

Requirements: 
 

This document shall serve as the Technology Practice Policy. 
 

6.9.    Government Cybersecurity Membership Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Government Cybersecurity Membership policy is to ensure the member stays current 

with cyber threat notifications and relevant information.  Both required below are FREE. 
 

Requirements: 
 

The member shall register and become a member of New Jersey Cybersecurity Communications Integration 

Cell (NJCCIC) and Multi-State Information Sharing and Analysis Center (MS-ISAC). 
 

 
New Jersey Cybersecurity & Communications Integration Cell (NJCCIC) - https://www.cyber.nj.gov/ 

 

The New Jersey Cybersecurity and Communications Integration Cell is the state’s one-stop shop for 
cybersecurity information sharing, threat intelligence, and incident reporting. Acting in a cyber fusion center 
capacity, the NJCCIC is a component organization within the New Jersey Office of Homeland Security and 
Preparedness. 

 
The NJCCIC works to make New Jersey more resilient to cyberattacks by promoting statewide awareness of 
cyber threats and widespread adoption of best practices. We provide a wide array of cybersecurity services, 
including the development and distribution of cyber alerts and advisories, cyber tips, and best practices for 
effectively managing cyber risk. Other services include threat briefings, risk assessments, incident response 
support, and training. 

 
 

Multi-State Information Sharing & Analysis Center (MS-ISAC) - https://www.cisecurity.org/ms-isac/ 
 
 

The mission of MS-ISAC is to improve the overall cybersecurity posture of the nation's state, local, tribal, and 
territorial governments through focused cyber threat prevention, protection, response, and recovery. 

 
The Center for Internet Security, Inc. (CIS®) makes the connected world a safer place for people, businesses, 
and governments through our core competencies of collaboration and innovation. 

http://www.cyber.nj.gov/
http://www.cisecurity.org/ms-isac/


Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
10 

 

 

We are a community-driven nonprofit, responsible for the CIS Controls® and CIS Benchmarks™, globally 
recognized best practices for securing technology systems and data. We lead a global community of 
technology professionals to continuously evolve these standards and provide products and services to 
proactively safeguard against emerging threats. Our CIS Hardened Images® provide secure, on-demand, 
scalable computing environments in the cloud. 

 
CIS is home to the Multi-State Information Sharing and Analysis Center® (MS-ISAC®), the trusted resource for 
cyber threat prevention, protection, response, and recovery for U.S. State, Local, Tribal, and Territorial 
government entities, and the Elections Infrastructure Information Sharing and Analysis Center® (EI-ISAC®), 
which supports the rapidly changing cybersecurity needs of U.S. elections offices. 

 
 

5. Tier 2 Operational Policies 
 

5.1.    Server Security Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Server Security Policy is to prevent unauthorized physical access, damage, and 

interference to the member’s server(s) and network equipment. 
 

Requirements: 
 

The member’s servers and network equipment shall be protected by physical barriers with restricted access 

controls and must not be in common public areas. The servers and network equipment may be stored in an 

enclosed cabinet, data closet, or office with secure entries. 
 

5.2.    Access Privilege Controls Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Access Privilege Control Policy is to control access to all technology digital assets. Access 

to all technology shall be controlled by role-based access controls. 
 

 

Requirements: 
 

a.    System and Network administrative rights are to be limited to those who are authorized to make changes 

to the systems, computers, and network. 

b.   Network and system access to file and folders are granted based on the individual's job function and level 

of responsibility. 

c. Access rights need to be reviewed and updated upon any personnel change. Exiting employees’ access 

must be revoked immediately upon separation. 

d.   A review process is to be implemented to ensure access rights are up to date. Minimal review frequency 

is six (6) months. 
 

5.3. Technology Support Policy 
 

Objective: 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
11 

 

 

The objective of the Technology Support Policy is to ensure the member has the technical support expertise 

and structure in place to effectively mitigate and triage technology and cyber related issues. 
 

Requirements: 
 

Technical support can be provided by a qualified and experienced employee or vendor. 
 

5.4.     System and Event Logging Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Logging Policy is to ensure system activities, information security events, and system 

utilization and performance are captured. 
 

Requirements: 
 

The member shall use the following Microsoft logs (or similar for other operating systems) to monitor system 

activities, information security events, and system utilization and performance. 
 

a- System 

b- Application 

c- Security 
 

Note: There are numerous free and for-cost log management tools on the market. 
 

5.5.    Protected Information Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Protected Information Policy is to ensure all digital files and data containing sensitive 

information, Personally Identifiable Information (PII), and Protected Health Information (PHI) are protected in 

accordance with statutory, regulatory, and contractual requirements. 
 

Requirements: 
 

All digital documents containing Personally Identifiable Information (PII), Protected Health Information (PHI) 

and documents deemed by the member as sensitive shall be encrypted. 
 

5.6.    Remote Access Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The purpose of Remote Access Policy is to secure remote access connectivity into the member’s network using 

a Virtual Private Network (VPN). 
 

Requirements: 
 

The member shall deploy a Virtual Private Network (VPN) for those who need to remotely access the 

member’s network. Only approved users, third-parties, vendors, and contractors may utilize the VPN service 

to connect to the member’s network. VPN profiles shall be created upon request from the relevant 

department head, approving authorities, or designated sponsor. 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
12 

 

 

Using Personal Devices: 
 

The following requirements only apply to those approved users, third-party, vendor or contractors who use 

their personal devices to access the member’s network. 
 

 All personal devices must be up to date with all applicable operating systems, security patches and 
virus/malware protection software. 

 Users with remote access privileges shall ensure their remote access connection is used explicitly for 
member work and used in a manner consistent with their on-site connection to the member’s 
network. 

 Personal equipment shall not be used to connect to the member network unless authorized and 
approved in writing by someone in senior management charged with approving cybersecurity 
changes. 

 VPN users are automatically disconnected from the member network after thirty (30) minutes of 
inactivity. The user must then logon again to re-authenticate in order to reconnect to the network. 

 All personal devices are required to use a password to protect from tampering using the same 
standards and requirements as the member’s equipment. 

 The member shall not allow remote users to save any data to their personal devices (i.e. member can 
utilize Content Access Controls or a Cloud Access Security Broker). 

 

5.7.    Leadership Expertise Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Leadership Expertise Policy is to ensure the member’s senior management has access to 

resources with expertise in their respective fields to support technology decision making, such as risk 

assessments, planning, budgeting, etc. 
 

Requirements: 
 

The member’s senior management shall have access to resources with expertise in their respective fields 

leveraging their technology support and the JIF’s or MEL’s available resources. 
 

5.8.    Technology Business Continuity Plan Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Technology Business Continuity Plan Policy is to ensure the member is prepared and can 

effectively recover from a disruption in service, including cyber breaches, denial of service or ransomware 

attacks, and be able to restore continuity of operations. 
 

Requirements: 
 

The Emergency Management/Continuity of Government (CoG) plan shall include an Technology Business 

Continuity Plan as part of its Disaster Recovery section. 
 

When developing an Technology Business Continuity Plan the member shall consider the following: 
 

 
Recovery Strategies 

5.1. Identify all operational functions 

5.2. Identify key support personnel and communications plan 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
13 

 

 

5.3. Prioritize based on Recovery Time Objectives (RTOs) 

5.4. Consider and accommodate the following impacts: 

   Loss of Computing (Systems and Data) 

   Loss of Telecommunications 

   Loss of Personnel 

   Denial of Physical Access 

   Critical vendors’ services 
 

5.9.    Banking Control Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Banking Control Policy is to prevent or reduce fraudulent banking transactions. 
 

Requirements: 
 

The member shall implement internal controls to minimize fraudulent banking transactions. The following are 

required: 
 

 Use Multi-Factor Authentication when accessing the bank’s system and making financial transactions, 
where available. 

 Establish procedures requiring multiple approvals for request to change banking information. 

 Establish procedures requiring multiple approvals and source verification for financial transaction 
requests over $5,000. 

 
 

6. Tier 3 Operational Policies 
 

6.1.    Network Segmentation Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Network Segmentation Policy is to reduce the spread of a cyber-attack by dividing the 

network into multiple zones or sub-networks, virtually or physically, and applying security protocols to each 

zone. The member shall consider isolating key business units or sensitive departments, such as finance and 

human resources. 
 

Requirements: 
 

Divide the network into multiple zones or sub-networks, virtually or physically, and apply security protocols 

to each zone. The member shall consider isolating key business units or sensitive departments, such as finance 

and human resources. 
 

Utilities shall have an "air gap" between their primary network and their Industrial Control System (ICS) / 

SCADA system. An air gap is a network security measure that physically isolates one network from another to 

prevent external connections. 
 

6.2.    Remote Access Policy 
 

Objective: 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
14 

 

 

The objective of the Remote Access Policy is to enhance the security level by adding a second layer of 

authentication when remotely accessing the member’s network, as well as giving the member certain controls 

over the device remotely accessing the network. 
 

Requirements: 
 

This is only applicable if you allow remote access to your network (i.e. employees, vendors, etc.).  Consider 

using Network Access Control (NAC) to limit remote network access to only pre-approved devices. 
 

 
MFA shall be enabled for the following remote connections: 

 
 Member’s network 

 Email service (if cloud based) 

 Third-Party applications that store or transmit PII or PHI information 
 

The following Remote Security Controls shall be enabled for devices remotely accessing the above 
connections: 

 

 The member shall require employees to immediately report a lost or stolen device. 

 The member shall maintain the ability to remotely wipe a user’s member-owned device. 

 The member shall maintain the ability to disconnect any user from the member’s network. 
 

6.3.    Password Integrity Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Password Integrity Policy is to frequently validate users’ emails and passwords to ensure 

they have not been compromised. 
 

Requirements: 
 

The member shall implement a process where user emails are checked against an email breach service, such 

as HaveIBeenPwned, to determine if any email addresses have been compromised. Member must take 

necessary action to ensure integrity of any emails found to in the breach database. 
 

 

The HaveIBeenPwned website is: https://haveibeenpwned.com/ 
 

6.4. System and Event Logging Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

Logs shall be reviewed every three (3) months by the technology professional. 
 

Requirements: 
 

Logs shall be reviewed every three (3) months by the technology professional. 
 

 
Note: There are numerous free and for-cost log management tools on the market. 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
15 

 

 

6.5.    Third-Party Risk Management Policy 
 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the Third-Party Risk Management (TPRM) Policy and Procedure is to ensure the protection of 

information that is accessible to outside vendors.  It is important to properly identify and manage risks 

associated when working with third-party vendors. 
 

Requirements: 
 

Vendor Review Process (New and Existing Vendors) 
 

A Vendor Review shall take place for those vendors/partnerships who store, handle, access, and/or transmit 

any of the following sensitive data: 

 Personally Identifiable Information (PII) 

 Protected Health Information (PHI) 

 Financial information 

 Credit card information 

 Access to the member’s information system and/or computer network 

 Any asset deemed sensitive and/or of value 
 

The Vendor Review shall be in the form of an extensive Third-Party Security Questionnaire (attached and 

embedded below) which shall be forwarded to the vendor for completion.   Following receipt of the 

questionnaire and any requested supporting documentation, the Vendor Relationship Manager** shall 

engage the appropriate qualified and experienced professionals, including their Risk Manager, to review and 

opine on the information provided. The overall risk associated with the selection of the vendor shall be 

carefully considered. 
 

 
**Vendor Relationship Manager – Person responsible for the service, product, or agreement being requested. 

 

 
Th ird Party Security 

Qu estion naire.xlsx 
 

 
Technology Vendors 

 

It  is  paramount to  select a  technology vendor that  has the  expertise, experience, and certification  to 

effectively design, implement, manage, and maintain your technology system. 
 

Requirements: 
 

The following is a sample list of items that should be considered: 

 Do they have the experience? 

 Are they reliable and with references? 

 Do they stay current with technology and trends? 

 Do they provide a contract with Service Level Agreements (SLA)? 

 Do they recommend ways to improve the performance and security of your network? 

 Can they recommend how to design your network with security controls in mind? 

 Can they design a network with redundancy built in to recover from a major incident? 



Master Technology Policy V 2.2 
16 

 

 

Technology Support Guidelines 
 

 

 

Industry Standard 
Certifications 

Certifications required based on support role 
 

Help Desk 
Support 

 

PC / Printer 
Repair 

 

Server Repair 
& Support 

 

System 
Administration 

Network & 
Infrastructure 

Support 

 

Information 
Security 

HDI technical support 
professional certification 

     

CompTIA IT Fundamentals 
(ITF+) 

 
    

CompTIA A+       

CompTIA Network +       

CompTIA Server +       

CompTIA Security +      

MCSE      

CCNA      

CISSP      

CEH      
 

 Certifications marked with a bullet are not required but good to have depending on customer needs. 
 

 
 

CompTIA IT Fundamentals 
(ITF+) 

Entry level certification focusing on essential IT skills and knowledge such as the functions and 
features of common operating systems, establishing network connectivity, security best practices 
and how to identify common software applications. 

 

 
CompTIA A+ 

The certification focuses on validating nine major IT skills, including hardware, operating systems, 
software troubleshooting, networking, hardware and network troubleshooting, security, mobile 
devices, virtualization and cloud computing and operational procedures. 

 

CompTIA Network + 
The certification focuses on configuring, managing, and maintaining network devices, 
implementing, and designing functional networks, network troubleshooting and network security. 

 

CompTIA Server + 
The certification focuses on knowledge of server hardware and technology as well as 
troubleshooting and repairing server issues, including disaster recovery. 

 

CompTIA Security + 
The certification focuses on threats, attacks and vulnerabilities, risk management, architecture 
and design, technology and tools, cryptography and PKI and identity and access management. 

MCSE 
Microsoft Certified 
Systems Engineer 

Though Microsoft has retired the MCSE certification program as of June 30, 2020, the certification 
focuses on designing, managing, and supporting Windows products and architecture. 

CCNA 
Cisco Certified Network 
Associate 

The CCNA certification focuses network fundamentals, network access, IP connectivity, IP 
services, security fundamentals and automation and programmability. 

CISSP 
Certified Information 
Systems Security 
Professional 

The CISSP certification focuses on critical security issues, including risk management, cloud 
computing, application development security, mobile security, etc. 

 

Certified Ethical Hacker 
The CEH certification specializes in penetration testing, vulnerability testing, and cyber forensics 
analysis. 



Incident Response Plan Version: 2.1 

Page 1 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Cyber Incident Response Plan 



Incident Response Plan Version: 2.1 

Page 2 

 

 

 
 

Document Management 
 

Document 
Owner: 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

Document 
Name: 

 

Cyber Incident Response Plan 

Version No: Version: 2.1 

Adoption 
Date: 

 

Distribution 
Date: 

 

Author 
(Source) 

 

Last Review 
Date: 

 

3/8/2021 

Next Review 
Date: 

 

1/1/2022 

Data 
Classification: 

 

Sensitive 



Incident Response Plan Version: 2.1 

Page 3 

 

 

 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Document Management 2 

 
1. Policy Statement 4 

 
2. Reason for the Policy 4 

 
3. Scope 4 

 
4. Incident Identification 4 

 

4.1 Cyber Extortion Threat 4 

4.2 Cyber Security Breach 5 

4.3 Data Breach 5 

 
5. Designation of an Incident Response Manager 5 

 

5.1 Responsibilities 5 

 
6. Incident Response Team and Notification 6 

 
7. Incident Response Phases 6 

 

7.1 Detection, Reporting, & Analysis 6 

7.2 Containment, Eradication, & Recovery 7 

7.3 Forensics 8 

7.4 Post-Incident Review 8 

 
8. Periodic Review 8 

 
9. Special Situations/Exceptions 8 



Incident Response Plan Version: 2.1 

Page 4 

 

 

 
 

1.  Policy Statement 
The Incident Response Plan defines our methods for identifying, tracking, and responding to technology- 

based security incidents. 

 

2.  Reason for the Policy 
The Incident Response Plan is established to assist in protecting the integrity, availability, and 

confidentiality of technology and assist in complying with statutory, regulatory and contractual 

obligations. 
 

Responding quickly and effectively to an Incident is critical to minimizing the spread of the Incident and/or 

the business, financial, legal, and/or reputational impact. Incident Response generally includes the 

following phases: 
 

• Detection, Reporting, and Analysis. 

• Legal. 

• Forensics. 

• Containment, Eradication, and Recovery. 

• Other Responses (i.e. Public Relations). 

• Post-Incident Review. 

 
3.  Scope 
This plan governs incidents that have a significant negative impact on information technology systems 

and/or sensitive information (hereinafter, “Incidents”). Incidents can include denial of service, malware, 

ransomware, and/or phishing attacks that can significantly impact operations and/or result in the 

unintended disclosure of sensitive data (e.g., constituent data, Protected Health Information, Personally 

Identifiable Information, credit card data, and law enforcement records). 
 

Minor events (e.g., routine detection, and remediation of a virus, a minor infraction of a security policy, 

or other similar issues that have little impact on day-to-day business operations) are not considered an 

Incident under this policy. 

 

4.  Incident Identification 
For cyber insurance purposes, a security incident is an event that is a: cyber security breach, or cyber 
extortion threat, or data breach. 

 
4.1 Cyber Extortion Threat 

 

A threat against a network to: 
 

1. Disrupt operations. 
2. Alter, damage, or destroy data stored on the network. 
3. Use the network to generate and transmit malware to third parties. 
4. Deface the member’s website. 
5.  Access  personally  identifiable  information,  protected  health  information,  or  confidential 
business information stored on the network; made by a person or group, whether acting alone, 



Incident Response Plan Version: 2.1 

Page 5 

 

 

 
 

or in collusion with others, demanding payment, or a series of payments in consideration for the 
elimination, mitigation, or removal of the threat. 

 
 

4.2 Cyber Security Breach 
 

Any unauthorized access to, use, or misuse of, modification to the network, and/or denial of network 
resources by attacks perpetuated through malware, viruses, worms, Trojan horses, spyware, adware, 
zero-day attack, hacker attack, or denial of service attack. 

 

4.3 Data Breach 
 

The actual or reasonably suspected theft, loss, or unauthorized acquisition of data that has or may 
compromise the security, confidentiality and/or integrity of personally identifiable information, 
protected health information, or confidential business information. 

 
Other cyber security incidents include: 

 Attempts from unauthorized sources to access systems or data. 

 Unplanned disruption to a service or denial of a service. 

 Unauthorized processing or storage of data. 

 Unauthorized changes to system hardware, access rights, firmware, or software. 

 Presence of a malicious application, such as ransomware, or a virus. 

 Presence of unexpected/unusual programs. 
 

5.  Designation of an Incident Response Manager 
The municipality shall designate an Incident Response Manager who is either a full or part time technology 

person working in your municipality on a daily basis or the highest-ranking administrative person in your 

municipality that employees would normally contact when having computer or technology problems. 

Ideally, this person should be readily available to employees in the case of a cyber security event. 
 

5.1 Responsibilities 
 

 The  municipality  has  designated  an  Incident  Response  Manager  that  is  responsible  for 

determining whether an event, or a series of security events, is declared an Incident. 

 The Incident Response Manager is responsible for ensuring that this policy is followed. 

 The Incident Response Manager is responsible for establishing an Incident Response Team to 

support the execution of this plan. 

 The Incident Response Team is tasked with executing this plan in accordance with and at the 

direction of the Incident Response Manager. 

 The highest-ranking administrative official in the municipality is responsible for ensuring that 

end-users have sufficient knowledge to recognize a potential security Incident and report it 

in accordance with this plan. 

 Employees are responsible to report potential security incidents in a timely manner and 

provide any requires support during plan execution. 



Incident Response Plan Version: 2.1 

Page 6 

 

 

 
 

6.  Incident Response Team and Notification 
Establish an incident response team to be able to quickly respond to cyber security incidents, and a team 

broad enough to gather the needed resources and make the appropriate decisions to resolve the incident. 

Such team shall include the following. 
 

Title / Position Name Telephone # 
Highest-ranking Administrative Official   
Chief of Police   
General Counsel   
Human Resources Manager   

Incident Response Manager   
JIF Risk Management Consultant   
JIF Claims Administrator   
Technology Support Contact   
AXA XL Data Breach Hotline  855-566-4724 

   
 

Please verify with your breach advisor/counsel that their firm will be handling the required breach 

notifications including, but potentially not limited to, those agencies listed below. 
 

IC3 FBI Internet Crime Complaint Center:  https://www.ic3.gov/ 
NJ Cybersecurity and 
Communications Integration 
Cell (NJCCIC) 

Incident Reporting: https://www.cyber.nj.gov/report 
 

609-963-6900  x 7 8 6 5 
 

 

7.  Incident Response Phases 
 

7.1 Detection, Reporting, & Analysis 
 

1.   If a user, employee, contractor, or vendor observes a potential security event they should notify 

the Incident Response Manager immediately. If the Incident Response Manager is not available, 

the events should be immediately reported to the highest-ranking administrative official. 

2.   The Incident Response Manager is responsible for communicating the Incident, its severity, and 

the action plan to the highest-ranking administrative official. 

3.   If the Incident Response Manager or the highest-ranking administrative official are not available, 

a user should isolate the affected devices from the network or internet by removing the 

network cable from the device. If operating via wireless, turn off the wireless connection. If 

isolating the machine from the network is not possible then unplug the machine from its power 

source. 

4.   If you have determined or suspect that the Incident is a cyber security breach, cyber extortion 

threat, or data breach (see Definitions Related to Cyber Liability Insurance – Section 4 of this 

document) proceed to Step 5. If not, proceed to Step 6. 

5.   For a cyber security breach, please follow this process: 

http://www.ic3.gov/
http://www.cyber.nj.gov/report


Incident Response Plan Version: 2.1 

Page 7 

 

 

 
 

If the AXA XL Data Breach Hotline does not answer, leave a message with your contact information. 
Do not delay in calling the Hotline. When they respond, follow their instructions. They will refer the 
matter to a “breach advisor/counsel” (an attorney experienced in cybersecurity incidents) who will 
coordinate the response. The Breach Counsel will gather information about the Incident and work 
with you to determine an action plan. 

 
The Incident Response Manager should follow the advice from the Breach Counsel until the issue 
is resolved. 

 
6.   If the Incident is determined not to be a cyber security breach, cyber extortion threat, or data 

breach, the Incident Response Manager should work with the Incident Response Team to assess 
the Incident, develop a plan to contain the Incident, and ensure the plan is communicated to 
and approved by the highest-ranking administrative official. 

7.   The Incident Response Manager should ensure that all actions are documented as they are 
taken and that the highest-ranking administrative official, Incident Response Team, and outside 
support are regularly updated. 

 
 

7.2 Containment, Eradication, & Recovery 
 

Containment is the act of limiting the scope and magnitude of the attack as quickly as possible. 

Containment has two goals: preventing data of note from being exfiltrated and preventing the 

attacker from causing further damage. 
 

Immediate triage: 
 

1.    Immediately contact technology expert to report the event and follow their instructions. 

It is now the responsibility of technology expert to notify management of the incident 

and to execute the security incident response plan. 

 
2.   If technology expert is not available, isolate the affected devices from the network or 

internet by removing the network cable from the device.  If operating via wireless, turn off 

the wireless connection.  DO NOT TURN OFF DEVICE OR REMOVE POWER SOURCE unless 

instructed by technology expert. 

 
3.    Incident response team assembles and assesses if the incident is a cyber security breach, 

cyber extortion threat, or data breach. If it is, or if there is any question the incident may or 

may not be one, management contacts their JIF Claims Administrator to advise them of the 

incident and management (or technology support) will call the Cyber Insurer Hotline. Work 

with the breach coach and the other partners they suggest to help resolve the incident. 

 
4.    Document all actions as they are taken. 

 

 
 

Eradication is the removal of malicious code, accounts, or inappropriate access. Eradication also 

includes repairing vulnerabilities that may have been the root cause of the compromise. A complete 

reinstallation of the OS and applications is preferred. 



Incident Response Plan Version: 2.1 

Page 8 

 

 

 
 

Recovery allows business processes affected by the Incident to recover and resume operations. It 

generally includes: 
 

 Reinstall and patch the OS and applications. 

 Change all user and system credentials. 

 Restore data to the system. 

 Return affected systems to an operationally ready state. 

 Confirm that the affected systems are functioning normally. 
 

7.3 Forensics 
 

Security incidents of a significant magnitude may require that a forensics investigation take place. 

Once that need has been established all additional investigation/containment activities need to be 

directed and/or performed by a forensics specialist to ensure that the evidence and chain of custody 

is maintained. The highest-ranking administrative official, in consultation with the Incident Response 

Manager and/or XL Caitlin will advise if engaging a forensics firm is required. 
 

7.4 Post-Incident Review 
 

To improve the Incident Response processes and identify recurring issues each Incident should be 

reviewed and formally reported on. The report should include: 
 

 Information about the Incident type 

 A description of how the Incident was discovered. 

 Information about the systems that were affected. 

 Information about who was responsible for the system and its data. 

 A description of what caused the Incident. 

 A description of the response to the Incident and whether it was effective. 

 A timeline of events, from detection to Incident closure 

 Recommendations to prevent future Incidents. 

 A discussion of lessons learned that will improve future responses. 

 
8.  Periodic Review 

This policy and associated subordinate procedures will be reviewed at least annually by the Incident 

Response Manager to adjust processes considering new risks and security best practices. Material 

changes in this policy should be approved by the highest-ranking administrative official and/or 

governing body of the municipality. 

 

9.  Special Situations/Exceptions 
Any personally owned devices, such as PDAs, phones, wireless devices, or other electronic devices 

which have been used to access organizational data and are determined to be relevant to an 

Incident, may be subject to retention until the Incident has been eradicated. 



 

 

Cyber Risk Management Resources 
 

We want to provide many resources and guides on many of the requirements in the MEL Cyber Risk Management Program, but your 
technology expert should be your first resource. You will find most the resources we highlight below are governmental entities, most 
notably MS-ISAC, US-CERT, CIS, NJCCIC and NIST.  These organizations provide an extensive array of free resources to public entities, 
so    we    encourage    contacting    them    for    services.        See    the    MEL’s    Cyber    Resources    guide:    https://njmel.org/wp- 
content/uploads/2019/06/Cyber-News_Free-Member-Resources.rev_.pdf 

 
Backups 

NJCCIC offers tips for data back-up setups:  https://cyber.nj.gov/mitigation-guides/backups-the-cure-to-viral-cyber-infections. 
 

Training 

Consider using an outside vendor to provide the training. See the MEL’s Cyber Hygiene Training Vendor guide attached. Cybersecurity 

Ventures, along with many other organizations, publishes an annual report of top vendors: 

https://cybersecurityventures.com/security-awareness-training-companies/. 
 

Passwords 

Review NJCCIC’s and NIST’s password recommendations.  NIST is the go-to source for cybersecurity standards and NJCCIC typically 

follows and provides some additional commentary: 

https://cyber.nj.gov/instructional-guides/passwords-passwords-passwords 

https://pages.nist.gov/800-63-3/ 
 

There are many services available to run your organization’s email addresses against known breaches, which are typically provided by 

your security software/SaaS provider, such as Norton, BitDefender, etc.   A very popular provider is “Have I Been Pwned?”: 

https://haveibeenpwned.com/. 
 

Multi-Factor Authentication (MFA) 

NJCCIC offers an easy technical guide to deploying multi-factor authentication in your organization: https://cyber.nj.gov/instructional- 

guides/stop-what-you-are-doing-and-enable-mfa. 

 
Government Cyber Memberships 
NJCCIC:  https://cyber.nj.gov/members/ 

MS-ISAC: https://learn.cisecurity.org/ms-isac-registration 

Water-ISAC:  https://www.waterisac.org/ 

E-ISAC: https://www.eisac.com/ 

US-CERT / CISA:  https://us-cert.cisa.gov/ 

ICS-CERT:  https://us-cert.cisa.gov/ics 
IT-ISAC: https://www.it-isac.org/ 
Elections-ISAC:  https://www.cisecurity.org/ei-isac/ 

Surface Transportation-ISAC:  http://www.surfacetransportationisac.org/ 
 

Remote Access 

This NJCCIC guide offers security tips for remote access: https://cyber.nj.gov/this-is-security/tips-for-teleworkers-remote-access- 

security. 

NJCCIC Router security:  https://www.cyber.nj.gov/instructional-guides/how-to-configure-and-secure-a-home-wi-fi-router 
 

Banking Controls 

See NJ DCA’s electronic payroll guide for assistance in this area of banking controls: 

https://www.state.nj.us/dca/divisions/dlgs/resources/pdf/payroll%20_agency_%20handbook.pdf 

http://www.waterisac.org/
http://www.eisac.com/
http://www.it-isac.org/
http://www.cisecurity.org/ei-isac/
http://www.surfacetransportationisac.org/
http://www.cyber.nj.gov/instructional-guides/how-to-configure-and-secure-a-home-wi-fi-router
http://www.state.nj.us/dca/divisions/dlgs/resources/pdf/payroll%20_agency_%20handbook.pdf


 

 

Email Warning Label for Outside Senders 

Add a warning label to all emails coming from outside of your organization via the transport server. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Segmentation 

NJCCIC guide to Network Segmentation:  https://www.cyber.nj.gov/this-is-security/network-segmentation 
 

Employee Policies 

Remote Working: Via the MEL’s Cyber insurer (AXA XL), their partner InformationShield has provided a template Remote Working 

policy to use with your employees. See attached. 

 
Mobile Device Access & Waiver: Via the MEL’s Cyber insurer (AXA XL), their partner NetDiligence has provided a template policy for 

your employee’s use of personal devices for work, giving authorization for you to access and wipe the device. 

http://www.cyber.nj.gov/this-is-security/network-segmentation


Employee Cyber Hygiene Training Options 
Prepared by the Bloustein Local Government Research Center 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 

 

Members can meet the Cyber Risk Management Program requirement for employee cyber hygiene training (Tier 

1 - at least one hour spread over two years) in several different ways. When considering their approach, JIFs and 

their members should consider: 1) the technology and cybersecurity risks they face, as measured against 2) the 

quality and elements of the training program and 3) the cost.  As in most risk management training programs, 

there is a direct correlation between the three elements. The better educational quality programs address a wider 

range of risks and are of better educational quality but cost more. The following graphic adds depth to the issues 

to consider; an explanation of the different types of programs follows: 
 

 
 
 

•Different video styles may appeal to different audiences 

•Phishing tests increase the value and reduce risks 

•Level of customziation desired 
 
 
 
 

•Cost is either fees to vendor or time spent by local program 
manager to customize testing 

 
 

 
•Staff needs to be assigned to manage the program, track 
employees, and decide what training is used. 

 
 
 

 
•The most flexible programs are the most accountable and have 
higher costs (fees plus time of local manager); The least flexible 
and accountable are the least expensive 

 
 
 

•Prices vary by: 

•Level of service provided by the vendor (higher price) as 
opposed to effort provided by customer (lower price) 

•Customization of training material 
 
 

•Different vendors have different approaches and options 

•Some provice collateral printed and onlne material, periodically 
refreshed 



Employee Cyber Hygiene Training Options 
Prepared by the Bloustein Local Government Research Center 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 

 
 

Review and Analysis of Cyber Hygiene Services (Fall 2017) 

Overview 
 

All of the reviewed providers1 offer online cyber hygiene (a.k.a. security awareness) videos and phishing training 

(companies only doing phishing training were excluded), and all do the same things with similar user enrollment 

and management reporting tools. The depth, pricing, management feature flexibility, and to some degree, the 

quality/style of videos are what differentiates them, making choices very JIF/member-dependent. While pricing 

is driven by the number of participants covered by contract, general pricing runs in the $8-$15/employee/year 

range (often based on a training service fee plus a phishing service fee), with variations driven by phishing 

training management, customization needs, and personnel (i.e., who manages the administrative overhead). 
 

Generally, company-managed overhead will be slightly more expensive than a management by a local official 

or JIF. Depending on the service, member maintenance may require the time and attention of a JIF or member 

staff person to manage that aspect.  Deciding on a vendor may hinge on the capacity of the JIF or individual 

member to handle the effort required by its choice of service. 
 

All vendors tend to update their material regularly as cyber threats continuously evolve. There are various 

industry perspectives on how to deal with some cyber threats; different vendors offer different guidance on 

how to do so; there might be minor differences on how those recommendations affect local governments, but 

these are not substantial issues. It is important to note most of the videos are focused on private businesses, 

and the nomenclature reflects that; however, the risks and solutions are generally the same. One vendor 

(PivotPoint) has developed videos specifically for MEL municipalities. 
 

The videos all differ by style (lifelike animation, cartoon, or live actors) and approach (from serious to relaxed), 

though the content is similar. All include interactive quizzes to reinforce the videos. National vendors also 

provide various types of free collateral materials designed to reinforce training. Phishing services involve 

sending emails to employees to see if they can be fooled into clicking on a dangerous link. Each vendor has a 

different approach and will propose various options to dealing with this form of penetration testing. 
 

 
 
 

1 Research began using the Gartner Group’s “Magic Quadrant for Security Awareness Computer-Based Training” 10/16 (most recent 
available when researched). Six of the vendors were selected from “Leader’s” quadrant (high ability to execute and completeness of 
vision), then reduced to those who services seem most relevant to JIF need (i.e., US –focused, end-user security training, and phishing 
testing, plus two NJ based firms that JIF member have worked with. 



Employee Cyber Hygiene Training Options 
Prepared by the Bloustein Local Government Research Center 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 

Phishing Test (Online) Service 

Service Level Sophistication of Test Costs 

Best Fully customized templates and 
schedule 

Fees and management time and 
attention vary by service provider 

Better Limited templates and schedule Limited management engagement 

Marginal None None 
 
 

The following analysis is organized into two vendor categories: New Jersey-based companies and large national 

ones. Following the analysis is a review of criteria that can be part of a contracting decisions (Training 

Management Considerations). 
 
 
 
 

D2Cybersecurity/Kean University 

NJ-Based Vendors 

www.d2cybersecurity.com/industries/municipalities.html 
 

D2 specializes in developing cybersecurity education and training for all levels of government and various private 

sector industries. It has a full line of videos that, depending on the level of service desired, can be branded or 

customized with the appearance of organization officials (this option requires video recording).  Its program is 

made up of 8 individual modules. Terminology tends to lean corporate, but not overwhelmingly so. Each module 

has an interactive quiz. It has a contract and marketing arrangement with Kean University that effectively 

eliminates public contracting issues (over $17,500 or $40,000 if that becomes an issue).  D2’s phishing service 

has 25+ sample templates it can modify based on specific needs or target groups (i.e., police may get something 

targeted to them). The company manages the overhead; the user works with them to determine what they 

want. Extreme customization for a specific user group might result in additional costs, but it appears flexible. 

Members only need to provide email addresses of employees, but deeper customization is available (depending 

on complexity, there could be a fee). If contracted by a JIF, it will provide an aggregate, anonymized 

management report to the JIF, and a detailed report to the member. D2 has a representative (Brian Lau) 

available to meet with members considering its services. 
 

PivotPoint 

www.pivotpointsecurity.com/security-awareness-training/ 
 

PivotPoint has developed a video training series specifically targeted to NJ municipalities2. It uses a personally 

narrated, less formal, self-deprecating, tongue-in-cheek humorous approach; this is different from the other 

firms (the video presenter is John Verry, the head of the firm). It was developed by technologists (other firms 
 

 
 

2 This was informed  in part through a contract PivotPoint has with A.J Gallagher managed JIFs; partly developed on the possibility of 
obtaining work with other JIFs 

http://www.d2cybersecurity.com/industries/municipalities.html
http://www.pivotpointsecurity.com/security-awareness-training/


Employee Cyber Hygiene Training Options 
Prepared by the Bloustein Local Government Research Center 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 

combine education specialists and technologists) and includes some superfluous technology jargon and detailed 

administrative information that are not present (and sometimes not relevant) in other vendor videos. The videos 

and site features are not fully active, but it is anticipated this will be addressed over time3. Given its interest in 

specifically serving JIFs, it has the capacity to meet with JIF officials to customize content.  It uses a third-party 

service to manager its phishing program. As such, it has limited mailing flexibility, customization options and a 

smaller number of templates and landing pages. These limitations are offset by reduced management overhead. 

Mailings go to enrolled users; the service sends a link to management, who resends it to employee-users so they 

can self-enroll. A management dashboard provides basic reporting functions for video use and phishing. 
 

Large National Vendors 
 

The following vendors (in alphabetical order) are very similar in capabilities and approaches. All services are 

highly automated with dashboards and pick-lists to manage the process. They compete with each other and, 

over time, generally match each other’s features. Video styles are varied. The narratives below are a summary 

of highlights from observations, limited demonstrations, and, in some cases, discussions with representatives. 

The firms all have website links to contact representatives who can discuss details for specific potential clients 

(the study made specific contacts with staff from MediaPro and Wombat, and information about KnowBe4 was 

obtained from its website and some JIF users of the service). The Gartner Group maintains a user review site of 

“security awareness computer-based training” companies.  The three companies are all included (among 

others).  This  can  be  seen  here:  www.gartner.com/reviews/market/security-awareness-computer-based- 

training 
 
 

KnowBe4 
www.knowbe4.com/ 

 
KnowBe4 is a full-service application including assessment tools, phishing/attack simulations, education 

modules, collateral materials, ongoing training and phishing ID software tools. It has multiple short modules and 

longer comprehensive ones from which the member can choose. It also provides a Microsoft Outlook “add-in” 

feature that lets a user report a phishing attack to it (available separately for a small fee, but installation requires 

technical skill). System management is highly automated, providing the member a high degree of customization, 

though it requires the thoughtful attention of a local coordinator to take advantage of all the features (including 

developing individualized, or edited templates, customized unlimited phishing emails and penetration 

attempts). Due to its high level of automation and member responsibility for making it all work via dashboards 

and menu-driven options, its per user cost tends to be lower than other services. KnowBe4’s services, support, 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 These issues have been brought to their attention and will likely be addressed in future revisions. 

http://www.gartner.com/reviews/market/security-awareness-computer-based-
http://www.knowbe4.com/


Employee Cyber Hygiene Training Options 
Prepared by the Bloustein Local Government Research Center 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 

sales and technical support staff are available through its website. It also provides a free phishing test (up to 

100 employees). 
 

MediaPro 

www.mediapro.com 
 

Media Pro is a full-service application including assessment tools, phishing/attack simulations, education 

modules, collateral materials, and ongoing training. It provides a very flexible platform with a wide variety of 

training packages that permit a “build your own” approach of mixing and matching interactive animated and 

photo-realistic videos from a wide selection of topics. Its videos include interactive quizzes and tests. Its 

integrated phishing dashboard has templates, but permits users to edit them and/or provide their own email. 

It also provides a variety of editable landing pages (the page that comes up when a phish is clicked on) with 

reinforcing videos that can be modified for specific users. Additionally, it has pre-packaged bundles that simplify 

the process. It would permit a JIF-based individual to manage the process for all member employees or permit 

a member who has a coordinator to handle training for the member. From a business standpoint, its 

representatives appear to understand government procurement issues and will work with resellers to handle 

RFPs. Its platform appears easy to use and allows a great degree of customization. Pricing is variable, based on 

the number of users and the services selected. It also has supplemental collateral materials, some of which can 

be locally branded. 
 

Wombat 

www.wombatsecurity.com 
 

Wombat security is a full-service application including assessment tools, phishing/attack simulations, education 

modules, collateral materials, ongoing training and phishing ID software tools. Its videos run in 5-15 minutes 

modules, are interactive, and animated. It has various bundled packages, as well as the ability to customize 

packages. It has a phishing tool platform designed to send out emails. Pricing is variable; it can be purchased by 

the package or priced for individual modules; the more modules, the better the pricing. It also has an Outlook 

add-in if its phishing tools are used. It provides unlimited access to exercises. Its educational focus is on 

behavioral modification. Its pricing is a little different from the other companies; it charges extra if you want it 

to manage the process for you. It also provides a dedicated “customer success manager” who helps customize 

its platform and branding as part of its base service. 

http://www.mediapro.com/
http://www.wombatsecurity.com/


Employee Cyber Hygiene Training Options 
Prepared by the Bloustein Local Government Research Center 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 

Training Management Considerations 
 

Cyber hygiene training requires management time and attention in ways similar to, but may exceed, other 

employee training programs. Members need to address the typical aspects of training management, such as 

assigning activities to individual employees and tracking their compliance and progress. Furthermore, each form 

of cyber hygiene training requires different levels of management attention. For example, online services require 

enrollment of employees, usually done by providing the company a list of employee email addresses or 

providing employees a link for logging into the service. Most services provide a management dashboard that 

tracks participants’ status and the results of testing. 
 

If a JIF is going to administer the program, each member will need to assign an individual to work with a JIF 

program coordinator to ensure employee lists and participation are effectively managed. If members are going 

to administer their own program, the office or individual that usually coordinates employee training (often 

found in the human resources/personnel function) will need to add cyber hygiene to their portfolio. Whether 

tracking employee participation is managed centrally or in each department, internal management procedures 

must be established to ensure adequate recordkeeping and oversight. 
 

The member’s technology coordinator (by whatever title or function) should be engaged in decision-making for 

cyber hygiene training to ensure the risks presented to the member’s employees are adequately addressed in 

the training program. Options include: selecting videos by subject matter or customizing the content of phishing 

emails. While the technology coordinator may not be an expert in employee training techniques, they have 

expertise in understanding the cyber threats presented to the organization. The coordinator should also be 

involved in reviewing the results of employee testing. 
 

Finally, as in all risk threats, members should establish an incident review practice whenever a cyber incident 

takes place. Reviewing cyber incidents from a risk management perspective will highlight gaps in training or 

internal procedures that can lead management to make improvements in its activities and improve employee 

training. As in other areas of administration, if an employee is involved in multiple incidents, found to knowingly 

disregard training or other technology policies, or repeatedly fail the training, the member should employ 

progressive disciplinary actions in accordance with its disciplinary procedures in other areas. 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

RESOLUTION   
 

AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION AND ACCEPTANCE OF NJDCA GRANT 
FOR FIRE DEPARTMENT TURNOUT GEAR 

 
WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood desires to apply for and obtain from the 

New Jersey Department of Community Affairs a Grant in the amount of approximately 
$75,000 for the purchase of turnout gear for the North Wildwood Fire Department. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the 
City of North Wildwood, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey:  

 
1. That the City of North Wildwood does hereby authorize the application for 

such a grant. 
2. That the City of North Wildwood recognizes and accepts that the Department 

may offer a lesser or greater amount and therefore, upon receipt of the grant 
agreement from the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs, does 
further authorize the execution of any such grant agreement; and also, upon 
receipt of the fully executed agreement from the Department, does further 
authorize the expenditure of funds pursuant to the terms of the agreement 
between  the City of North Wildwood and the New Jersey Department of 
Community Affairs. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the persons whose names, titles and 
signatures appear below are authorized to sign the application, and that they or their 
successors in said titles, are authorized to sign the agreement, and any other documents 
necessary in connection therewith: 
              
         __________________________________  
          Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
    
         __________________________________  
         Nic Long, City Administrator 
 
 
 
 

OFFERED BY: __________________ SECONDED BY: _______________________ 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY                                                            COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of 
New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution 
adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 
19th day of July 2022. 
 
Dated:   July 19, 2022    Signed: _____________________________ 
        W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 

Approved: __________________________  
 Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Aye      Nay Abstain Absent  Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo     Koehler     
Rullo     Bishop     

Kane     Zampirri     
Del Conte          

              
#  



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 1    
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Batch Id: NPL       Batch Type: C   Batch Date: 07/19/22  Checking Account: CREST            G/L Credit: Budget G/L Credit
Generate Direct Deposit: N

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

            07/19/22   01446    ADVANCED VIDEO & SOUND LLC             333 BLOSSOM CICLE                                            
22-00211 01/31/22   1 City hall music                       4,610.00   2-01-26-310-021             Budget        Aprv     1     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS - CONTR SVCS              
                                                            4,610.00 
 
            07/19/22   01458    ATLANTIC TACTICAL                      3319 anvil place                                             
22-01495 07/01/22   1 Double Handcuff TACO                     69.95   2-01-25-240-032             Budget        Aprv    14     1
                                                                       POLICE - CLOTHING & UNIFORMS            
22-01621 07/13/22   1 Attachments for Vest                    102.01   2-01-25-240-032             Budget        Aprv    79     1
                                                                       POLICE - CLOTHING & UNIFORMS            
                                                              171.96 
 
            07/19/22   01479    AT&T MOBILITY                          PO BOX 6463                                                  
22-01626 07/13/22   1 CITY CELL PHONES                      2,036.49   2-01-31-440-010             Budget        Aprv    86     1
                                                                       TELEPHONE COSTS                         
22-01628 07/13/22   1 CITY CELL PHONES                        757.86   2-01-31-440-010             Budget        Aprv    88     1
                                                                       TELEPHONE COSTS                         
                                                            2,794.35 
 
            07/19/22   01485    ADMINISTRATIVE ADVANTAGE               PO BOX 13846                                                 
22-01627 07/13/22   1 JUNE 2022 BILLING                       708.83   2-01-20-132-099             Budget        Aprv    87     1
                                                                       AMBULANCE BILLING COSTS                 
                                                              708.83 
 
            07/19/22   01964    AMERIFLEX                              PO BOX 871655                                                
22-01597 07/13/22   1 HRA & FSA JULY 2022                     508.25   2-01-23-220-096             Budget        Aprv    55     1
                                                                       INSURANCE CONSULTANT COMMISSION         
                                                              508.25 
 
            07/19/22   01993    ADP LLC                                PO BOX 842875                                                
22-01631 07/13/22   1 TIME AND ATTENDANCE                     218.95   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv    91     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
                                                              218.95 
 
            07/19/22   02324    BARBER CONSULTING SERVICES             32 CENTRAL AVENUE                                            
22-01649 07/14/22   1 MBEP SERVER/MBEP249 GOV               2,431.15   2-01-20-100-028             Budget        Aprv   105     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - PROF/ CONSULTANT              
22-01649 07/14/22   2 MBEP SERVER/MBEP249 GOV               2,431.14   2-01-20-130-028             Budget        Aprv   106     1
                                                                       FIN ADM - OTHER PROF/ CONSULT           
22-01650 07/14/22   1 MISCH OVERTIME AND ADD USERS            100.00   2-01-20-130-028             Budget        Aprv   107     1
                                                                       FIN ADM - OTHER PROF/ CONSULT           
22-01650 07/14/22   2 MISCH OVERTIME AND ADD USERS            200.00   2-01-25-265-036             Budget        Aprv   108     1
                                                                       FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                  
22-01650 07/14/22   3 MISCH OVERTIME AND ADD USERS            500.00   2-01-22-195-060             Budget        Aprv   109     1
                                                                       INSP OF CONSTR-COMPUTER MAINTENANCE     
22-01650 07/14/22   4 MISCH OVERTIME AND ADD USERS          2,104.99   2-01-25-240-026             Budget        Aprv   110     1
                                                                       POLICE - MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP           
22-01650 07/14/22   5 MISCH OVERTIME AND ADD USERS            460.00   2-01-20-100-028             Budget        Aprv   111     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - PROF/ CONSULTANT              



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 2    
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

22-01650 07/14/22   6 MISCH OVERTIME AND ADD USERS            360.00   2-01-22-195-060             Budget        Aprv   112     1
                                                                       INSP OF CONSTR-COMPUTER MAINTENANCE     
                                                            8,587.28 
 
            07/19/22   02719    Blaney, Donohue, Weinberg PC           2123 DUNE DRIVE, SUITE 11                                    
22-01644 07/14/22   1 Professional Services                 1,551.50   2-01-20-155-027             Budget        Aprv   100     1
                                                                       LEGAL SERV-PROF SERVICES                
                                                            1,551.50 
 
            07/19/22   03042    CARLSEN GROUP INC, THE                 SHORESCAN SOLUTIONS                                          
22-01624 07/13/22   1 SHORESCAN MONTHLY                        87.00   2-01-20-145-036             Budget        Aprv    81     1
                                                                       TAX COL- OFFICE SUPPL                   
22-01624 07/13/22   2 SHORESCAN MONTHLY                        87.00   2-01-20-120-036             Budget        Aprv    82     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
                                                              174.00 
 
            07/19/22   03050    C.M.C.M.U.A.                           1523 route 9 north                                           
22-01596 07/13/22   1 TIPPING & B&G                           775.19   2-01-26-310-066             Budget        Aprv    53     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS LANDSCAPING               
22-01596 07/13/22   2 TIPPING & B&G                        46,875.55   2-01-31-467-099             Budget        Aprv    54     1
                                                                       CMC TIPPING FEES                        
                                                           47,650.74 
 
            07/19/22   03159    COASTAL LANDSCAPING                    102-D N, RAILROAD AVE                                        
22-01487 07/01/22   1 Spronkler Sys Repairs                   250.00   2-01-26-310-021             Budget        Aprv     6     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS - CONTR SVCS              
22-01488 07/01/22   1 Healthy Lawn Program #2                 125.03   2-01-26-310-021             Budget        Aprv     7     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS - CONTR SVCS              
22-01489 07/01/22   1 Install new drip irrigation           2,200.00   2-01-26-310-021             Budget        Aprv     8     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS - CONTR SVCS              
                                                            2,575.03 
 
            07/19/22   03345    BRIAN CUNNIFF                          204 WEST LAVENDER ROAD                                       
22-01613 07/13/22   1 SUMMER BBALL REFEREE - MENS              90.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    77     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                               90.00 
 
            07/19/22   03370    CAROLYN COLLIER                                                                                     
22-01575 07/12/22   1 YOGA INSTRUCTOR                          35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    37     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01575 07/12/22   2 YOGA FUSION INSTRUCTOR                   35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    38     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01575 07/12/22   3 GET FIT IN 40 INSTRUCTOR                 35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    39     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01575 07/12/22   4 CORE YOGA INSTRUCTOR                     35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    40     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01575 07/12/22   5 YOGA INSTRUCTOR                          35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    41     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01575 07/12/22   6 YOGA FUSION INSTRUCTOR                   35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    42     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01575 07/12/22   7 GET FIT IN 40 INSTRUCTOR                 35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    43     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 3    
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

22-01575 07/12/22   8 CORE YOGA INSTRUCTOR                     35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    44     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01575 07/12/22   9 YOGA INSTRUCTOR                          35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    45     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01575 07/12/22  10 YOGA FUSION INSTRUCTOR                   35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    46     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              350.00 
 
            07/19/22   03383    ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC                 P.O.BOX 13610                                                
22-01645 07/14/22   1 ELECTRIC JUNE 2022 GROUND            15,514.89   2-01-31-430-010             Budget        Aprv   101     1
                                                                       ELECTRICITY COSTS                       
22-01645 07/14/22   2 ELECTRIC JUNE 2022 STREETS            1,991.66   2-01-31-435-010             Budget        Aprv   102     1
                                                                       STREET LIGHTING COSTS                   
22-01645 07/14/22   3 ELECTRIC JUNE 2022 GENERAL           15,514.89   2-01-31-435-010             Budget        Aprv   103     1
                                                                       STREET LIGHTING COSTS                   
                                                           33,021.44 
 
            07/19/22   039021   CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION               OFFICE OF ADM & TRAINING                                     
22-01637 07/14/22   1 CAMPS Training                          400.00   2-01-20-100-042             Budget        Aprv    98     1
                                                                       GEN ADM-EDUCATION AND TRAINING          
                                                              400.00 
 
            07/19/22   05011    EDMUNDS & ASSOCIATES                   301 A TILTON ROAD                                            
22-01630 07/13/22   1 BULK BLANDS                           1,050.00   2-01-20-145-036             Budget        Aprv    90     1
                                                                       TAX COL- OFFICE SUPPL                   
                                                            1,050.00 
 
            07/19/22   05743    ENTERPRISE FM TRUST                    PO BOX 800089                                                
22-01633 07/14/22   1 LEASE PAYMENTS                       14,264.73   2-01-26-315-025             Budget        Aprv    95     1
                                                                       FLEET MAINT - LEASE PAYMENTS            
                                                           14,264.73 
 
            07/19/22   06159    FEDERAL RENT-A-FENCE, INC              P.O. BOX 266                                                 
22-01598 07/13/22   1 FENCING FOR BBQ                         825.55   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv    56     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
                                                              825.55 
 
            07/19/22   07046    GENERAL CODE ,LLC                      po box 772512                                                
22-01606 07/13/22   1 SUPPLEMENT 76                         4,875.55   2-01-20-120-105             Budget        Aprv    73     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - CODIF. OF ORDS                
                                                            4,875.55 
 
            07/19/22   07242    GLOCK INC                              PO BOX 1254                                                  
22-01602 07/13/22   1 Firing Pin Springs                       30.00   2-01-25-240-058             Budget        Aprv    69     1
                                                                       POLICE-OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES           
                                                               30.00 
 
            07/19/22   07313    GUARDIAN TRACKING,LLC                  PO BOX 2291                                                  
22-01502 07/01/22   1 Contract Renewal                      3,126.45   2-01-25-240-029             Budget        Aprv    18     1
                                                                       POLICE-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES             
                                                            3,126.45 
 



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 4    
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

            07/19/22   07317    GREAT AMERICAN FINANCIAL SERV          PO BOX 660831                                                
22-01608 07/13/22   1 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE                   243.00   2-01-20-120-022             Budget        Aprv    74     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - POSTAGE                       
                                                              243.00 
 
            07/19/22   07963    GRASSY SOUNDS MARINA OPERATION         13 OLD NORTH WILDWOOD BLVD                                   
22-01170 05/31/22   2 NWFD Boat Fuel                          497.40   2-01-31-460-010             Budget        Aprv     2     1
                                                                       GASOLINE COSTS                          
                                                              497.40 
 
            07/19/22   09057    IACP                                   MEMBERSHIP                                                   
22-01501 07/01/22   1 Conference                              425.00   2-01-25-240-041             Budget        Aprv    17     1
                                                                       POLICE - CONFERENCES AND MTGS           
                                                              425.00 
 
            07/19/22   10077    JOYCEMEDIA                             41 PARK DRIVE                                                
22-01639 07/14/22   1 Web Hosting Package                   1,033.35   2-01-20-100-028             Budget        Aprv    99     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - PROF/ CONSULTANT              
                                                            1,033.35 
 
            07/19/22   10205    J.BYRNE AGENCY                         5200 NEW JERSEY AVENUE                                       
22-01635 07/14/22   1 Anglesea Fire Flood Policy            3,036.00   2-01-23-210-093             Budget        Aprv    96     1
                                                                       INSURANCE-FLOOD/ ACCIDENT               
                                                            3,036.00 
 
            07/19/22   11048    K.O. SPORTS                            2001 E. MOYAMENSING AVE                                      
22-01538 07/08/22   1 MENS LEAGUE JERSEYS                   1,344.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    24     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01538 07/08/22   2 MENS LEAGUE JERSEYS  2X                  14.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    25     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01538 07/08/22   3 MENS LEAGUE JERSEYS-NEW SCREEN           50.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    26     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01538 07/08/22   4 AOH LEAGUE JERSEYS                    1,020.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    27     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01538 07/08/22   5 AOH LEAGUE - SCREENS                     50.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    28     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01538 07/08/22   6 ELKS LEAGUE - SCREENS                    25.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    29     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01538 07/08/22   7 ELKS LEAGUE - JERSEYS                 1,020.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    30     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01538 07/08/22   8 HIGH SCHOOL LEAGUE - JERSEYS            816.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    31     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01538 07/08/22   9 HIGH SCHOOL LEAGUE - SCREENS             50.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    32     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01538 07/08/22  10 MRSA LEAGUE - SCREENS                    50.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    33     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01538 07/08/22  11 MRSA LEAGUE - JERSEYS                   816.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    34     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                            5,255.00 
 
            07/19/22   11321    KYION FLANDERS                         PO BOX 362                                                   
22-01578 07/12/22   1 BUCKETS BBALL CAMP COACH                340.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    49     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 5    
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              340.00 
 
            07/19/22   12022    LEADER PRINTERS                        5914 NEW JERSEY AVENUE                                       
22-01605 07/13/22   1 ENVELOPES                               393.12   2-01-20-120-036             Budget        Aprv    71     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01605 07/13/22   2 LETTERHEAD                              229.76   2-01-20-120-036             Budget        Aprv    72     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
                                                              622.88 
 
            07/19/22   13901    BRIAN MCDOWELL                         407 e 10th ave                                               
22-01506 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                    76.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    19     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                               76.00 
 
            07/19/22   140069   BARRY A SCHULTZ                        1111 COUNTY BERRY COURT                                      
22-01581 07/12/22   1 SUMMER LEAGUE BBALL REF - MENS           90.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    52     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                               90.00 
 
            07/19/22   14289    NJ DEPT OF COMM. AFFAIRS               DIV. OF CODES & STANDARDS                                    
22-01535 07/08/22   1 2ND QUARTER FEES                      6,970.00   T-03-56-150-011             Budget        Aprv    22     1
                                                                       UCC-THIRD PARTY                         
                                                            6,970.00 
 
            07/19/22   14309    NEW HORIZON COMMUNICATIONS             P.O. BOX 981073                                              
22-01599 07/13/22   1 JUNE 2022                             2,216.14   2-01-31-440-010             Budget        Aprv    57     1
                                                                       TELEPHONE COSTS                         
                                                            2,216.14 
 
            07/19/22   15964    PLANET TECHNOLOGIES INC                20400 OBSERVATION DR                                         
22-01279 06/10/22   1 Contract Renewal                      2,956.80   2-01-25-240-029             Budget        Aprv     3     1
                                                                       POLICE-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES             
                                                            2,956.80 
 
            07/19/22   16071    WILLIAM PIOTROWSKI, JR.                106 A EAST 23RD AVENUE                                       
22-01580 07/12/22   1 SUMMER BBALL LEAGUE REF - MENS           90.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    51     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                               90.00 
 
            07/19/22   18206    RICHARD STOCKTON COLLEGE               ATTN:BURSAR'S OFFICE                                         
22-01648 07/14/22   1 SURVEY BEACH SPRING 2022             28,111.92   C-04-55-863-010             Budget        Aprv   104     1
                                                                       ORD 1863- BUILDINGS, GROUNDS, BEACH     
                                                           28,111.92 
 
            07/19/22   18990    RUTGERS THE STATE UNIVERSITYNJ         102 RYDERS lANE                                              
22-01492 07/01/22   1 Training                                495.00   2-01-25-240-042             Budget        Aprv    11     1
                                                                       POLICE - EDUCATION & TRAINING           
                                                              495.00 
 
            07/19/22   1900059  MEIGHAN OLKOWSKI                       141 MERCY STREET                                             
22-01490 07/01/22   1 REFUND - BUCKETS BBALL CAMP             175.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv     9     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 6    
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              175.00 
 
            07/19/22   1900061  KELLY RAHILL                           305 FOYCROFT DRIVE                                           
22-01536 07/08/22   1 SUMMER BBALL LEAGUE - REFUND             40.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    23     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                               40.00 
 
            07/19/22   1900062  MEGAN HAWK                             112 ANGLESEA DRIVE                                           
22-01491 07/01/22   1 REFUND - BUCKETS BBALL CAMP             175.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    10     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              175.00 
 
            07/19/22   1900063  LISA GREGORICH                         5252 WESTBROOK DRIVE                                         
22-01499 07/01/22   1 REFUND- BUCKETS BBALL CAMP              175.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    16     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              175.00 
 
            07/19/22   190052   DANIELLE STERBA                        103 FAIRFAX ROAD                                             
22-01577 07/12/22   1 BUCKETS BBALL CAMP REFUND               175.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    47     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01577 07/12/22   2 SOCCER CAMP REFUND                      250.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    48     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              425.00 
 
            07/19/22   190053   JANICE MAZZONI                         858 FERN ROAD                                                
22-01579 07/12/22   1 BUCKETS BBALL CAMP REFUND               350.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    50     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              350.00 
 
            07/19/22   190054   JACKIE POOLER                          1233 EAST MOYAMENSING AVENUE                                 
22-01610 07/13/22   1 BUCKETS BBALL CAMP REFUND               175.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    75     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01610 07/13/22   2 SUMMER BBALL LEAGUE REFUND               40.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    76     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              215.00 
 
            07/19/22   19059    SEASHORE SIGN                          20-b S MAIN STREET                                           
22-01494 07/01/22   1 Bike Lettering                           80.00   2-01-25-240-026             Budget        Aprv    13     1
                                                                       POLICE - MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP           
                                                               80.00 
 
            07/19/22   19216    SOUTH JERSEY GAS CO                    P.O. BOX 6091                                                
22-01601 07/13/22   1 2118040000                               42.59   2-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    58     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
22-01601 07/13/22   2 3478040000                                7.41   2-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    59     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
22-01601 07/13/22   3 3899040000                               40.76   2-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    60     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
22-01601 07/13/22   4 438040000                                66.16   2-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    61     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
22-01601 07/13/22   5 9379040000                              157.19   2-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    62     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 7    
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
22-01601 07/13/22   6 4630140000                               37.05   2-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    63     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
22-01601 07/13/22   7 1920140000                               75.07   2-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    64     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
22-01601 07/13/22   8 1340140000                               70.26   2-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    65     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
22-01601 07/13/22   9 2951140000                               79.00   2-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    66     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
22-01601 07/13/22  10 413904000                               118.21   2-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    67     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
22-01601 07/14/22  11 7823140000                               45.71   2-01-31-446-010             Budget        Aprv    68     1
                                                                       NATURAL GAS COSTS                       
                                                              739.41 
 
            07/19/22   19335    STATE TOXICOLOGY LABORATORY            DIVISION OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE                                 
22-01546 07/11/22   1 Tests                                   700.00   2-01-25-240-093             Budget        Aprv    35     1
                                                                       POLICE - MEDICAL EXPENSES               
                                                              700.00 
 
            07/19/22   19445    THE SUN BY THE SEA                     PO BOX 2101                                                  
22-01616 07/13/22   1 JULY-AUGUST ISSUE                       700.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    78     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01636 07/14/22   1 Business Cards - Long                    50.00   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv    97     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
                                                              750.00 
 
            07/19/22   19578    SONITROL SECURITY OF DE VALLEY         802  FIRST STATE BLVD                                        
22-01496 07/01/22   1 Service Maintenance                   1,301.22   2-01-25-240-029             Budget        Aprv    15     1
                                                                       POLICE-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES             
                                                            1,301.22 
 
            07/19/22   20047    TREE SURGEON 89 LLC                    27 west hereford ave                                         
22-01486 07/01/22   1 Tree Service 20th & Central             666.41   2-01-26-310-021             Budget        Aprv     5     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS - CONTR SVCS              
                                                              666.41 
 
            07/19/22   20250    TAYLOR OIL COMPANY                     P.O. BOX 974                                                 
22-01632 07/13/22   1 NO LEAD GAS                           2,995.23   2-01-31-460-010             Budget        Aprv    92     1
                                                                       GASOLINE COSTS                          
22-01632 07/13/22   2 NO LEAD GAS                           7,793.73   2-01-31-460-010             Budget        Aprv    93     1
                                                                       GASOLINE COSTS                          
22-01632 07/13/22   3 NO LEAD GAS                           2,857.61   2-01-31-460-010             Budget        Aprv    94     1
                                                                       GASOLINE COSTS                          
                                                           13,646.57 
 
            07/19/22   20273    TRINITY CODE INSPECTIONS LLC           735 SHUNPIKE ROAD                                            
22-01534 07/08/22   1 JUNE 2023 ELECTRIC                    4,055.00   T-03-56-150-011             Budget        Aprv    20     1
                                                                       UCC-THIRD PARTY                         
22-01534 07/08/22   2 JUNE 2023 PLUMBING                   11,250.00   T-03-56-150-011             Budget        Aprv    21     1
                                                                       UCC-THIRD PARTY                         
                                                           15,305.00 



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 8    
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

 
            07/19/22   22039    VECTOR SECURITY                        PO BOX 89462                                                 
22-01622 07/13/22   1 SERVICE - MONITORING                    872.68   2-01-28-370-026             Budget        Aprv    80     1
                                                                       REC CNTR- MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP          
                                                              872.68 
 
            07/19/22   23001    WEST PAYMENT CENTER                    P.O. BOX 6292                                                
22-01603 07/13/22   1 WEST ONLINE                             204.53   2-01-20-120-033             Budget        Aprv    70     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - BOOKS AND PUB                 
                                                              204.53 
 
            07/19/22   23225    WB MASON CO INC                        P.O. BOX 981101                                              
22-01625 07/13/22   1 WATER COOLERS                             1.90   2-01-20-130-036             Budget        Aprv    83     1
                                                                       FIN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01625 07/13/22   2 WATER COOLERS                             4.75   2-01-20-130-036             Budget        Aprv    84     1
                                                                       FIN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01625 07/13/22   3 WATER COOLERS                             0.95   2-01-20-130-036             Budget        Aprv    85     1
                                                                       FIN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
                                                                7.60 
 
            07/19/22   23281    CHRISTOPHER J.WINTER SR.               7 MONARCH STREET                                             
22-01493 07/01/22   1 Accreditation Services                  450.00   2-01-25-240-029             Budget        Aprv    12     1
                                                                       POLICE-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES             
                                                              450.00 
 
            07/19/22   24005    XEROX CORPORATION                      po box 827598                                                
22-01629 07/13/22   1 CITY COPIER SERVICE                   1,484.48   2-01-25-240-026             Budget        Aprv    89     1
                                                                       POLICE - MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP           
                                                            1,484.48 
 
            07/19/22   29363    HARBOR AWNINGS                         2 SOLAR WAT                                                  
22-01450 06/27/22   1 Lou Booth Canopy 2022                 3,168.00   T-03-56-200-011             Budget        Aprv     4     1
                                                                       TOURIST DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION          
                                                            3,168.00 
 
            07/19/22   30011    MATTHEW K KOCHER                       15105 INA DR                                                 
22-01573 07/12/22   1 SOCCER CANP TRAINER                     504.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    36     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              504.00 
 
            07/19/22   02188    BANK OF AMERICA                        P.O. BOX 15731                                               
22-01652 06/16/22   1 101608524 - Subscription Renew        1,500.00   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   113     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01653 06/21/22   1 GIFT CARDS FOR MISS NORTH WILD          100.00   T-03-56-200-011             Budget        Aprv   114     1
                                                                       TOURIST DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION          
22-01653 06/22/22   2 GIFT CARDS FOR PICKLEBALL INST          150.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   115     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01654 06/09/22   1 S4337352.02 - Repair Kit                 40.74   2-01-26-290-055             Budget        Aprv   116     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PLBING/AC/HTG EQUIP             
22-01654 06/13/22   2 S4337375.002 - Repair Kit               162.97   2-01-26-290-055             Budget        Aprv   117     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PLBING/AC/HTG EQUIP             
22-01654 06/20/22   3 S4344188.002 - Kit                       72.40   2-01-26-290-055             Budget        Aprv   118     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 9    
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       PUB WKS-PLBING/AC/HTG EQUIP             
22-01655 05/31/22   1 111-9432222 LEATHER RADIO HOLD          559.86   2-01-25-265-056             Budget        Aprv   119     1
                                                                       FIRE - FIRE & SAFETY EQUIPMENT          
22-01655 06/02/22   2 111-2699971-6093 GATE LATCHES            60.95   2-01-28-370-058             Budget        Aprv   120     1
                                                                       REC CTR-OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
22-01655 06/05/22   3 Phone Cases                              89.98   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   121     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01655 06/05/22   4 Supplies                                 80.70   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   122     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01655 06/06/22   5 Storage Box for Quad                    197.81   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   123     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01655 06/07/22   6 AMAZON OFFICE SUPPLIES                    9.99   2-01-20-145-036             Budget        Aprv   124     1
                                                                       TAX COL- OFFICE SUPPL                   
22-01655 06/07/22   7 AMAZON OFFICE SUPPLIES                   15.81   2-01-20-145-036             Budget        Aprv   125     1
                                                                       TAX COL- OFFICE SUPPL                   
22-01655 06/08/22   8 Screen door push bar                     94.72   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   126     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01655 06/08/22   9 Bike Helmet                              30.98   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   127     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01655 06/12/22  10 111-9512860-8540255  EQUIPMENT           66.79   2-01-28-370-065             Budget        Aprv   128     1
                                                                       REC CTR - REC PROGRAM EQUIP & supplies  
22-01655 06/10/22  11 111-0482345-1847450 SPORTS BAL           18.99   2-01-28-370-065             Budget        Aprv   129     1
                                                                       REC CTR - REC PROGRAM EQUIP & supplies  
22-01655 06/14/22  12 Shirts                                   54.98   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   130     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01655 06/15/22  13 Office Supplies                          91.97   2-01-20-120-036             Budget        Aprv   131     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01655 06/15/22  14 Storage Boxes for Quads                 386.76   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   132     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01655 06/16/22  15 OEM Replacement Belt Toro               233.91   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   133     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01655 06/17/22  16 Whistles                                 29.98   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   134     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01655 06/16/22  17 Supplies                                 19.97   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   135     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01655 06/23/22  18 1113570333 RESCUE TUBE                   76.99   2-01-25-265-056             Budget        Aprv   136     1
                                                                       FIRE - FIRE & SAFETY EQUIPMENT          
22-01655 06/25/22  19 Phone Case                               41.98   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   137     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01655 06/26/22  20 1115551097 HDMI SPLITTER                 20.10   2-01-25-265-024             Budget        Aprv   138     1
                                                                       FIRE - MAINT & REPAIRS                  
22-01655 06/25/22  21 Supplies                                 96.29   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   139     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01655 06/25/22  22 Locking connector 50amp                 563.80   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   140     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01655 06/26/22  23 1115551097 100 FT CABLE , POWE          126.27   2-01-25-265-024             Budget        Aprv   141     1
                                                                       FIRE - MAINT & REPAIRS                  
22-01655 06/28/22  24 Liftmaster gate opener                  105.90   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   142     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01655 06/28/22  25 Gloves                                  203.20   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   143     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01655 06/29/22  26 Chair lift cylinder pneumatic           179.94   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   144     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 10   
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01655 06/03/22  27 113-9233020-8877800 A FRAME BO          256.85   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   145     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01656 06/16/22   1 318702 - Fluid - Flush                  656.74   2-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   146     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
22-01656 06/16/22   2 318320 - Repair                       1,154.73   2-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   147     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
22-01657 06/01/22   1 Electrical supplies for Rec.             49.60   2-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv   148     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
22-01657 06/06/22   2 Bulbs for City Hall Elevator             32.36   2-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv   149     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
22-01657 06/07/22   3 Supplies for 15th St Fire Hous          120.45   2-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv   150     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
22-01657 06/09/22   4 Supplies for festival                    80.44   2-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv   151     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
22-01657 06/09/22   5 Supplies for festival                    20.00   2-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv   152     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
22-01657 06/15/22   6 electric supplies for upcoming           40.22   2-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv   153     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
22-01657 06/20/22   7 Supplies NWPD                            72.70   2-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv   154     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
22-01657 06/23/22   8 Elec. supplies NWPD                      60.50   2-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv   155     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
22-01657 06/24/22   9 Supplies for NWPD                        84.36   2-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv   156     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
22-01657 06/28/22  10 Elec supplies NWPD                      290.80   2-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv   157     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
22-01658 06/23/22   1 750993-00 - Parts                    12,245.96   2-01-26-290-026             Budget        Aprv   158     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF EQUIPT OVER 1 TON      
22-01659 06/09/22   1 BATTERIES                                10.49   2-01-28-370-026             Budget        Aprv   159     1
                                                                       REC CNTR- MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP          
22-01660 06/09/22   1 Split Rail and posts                  3,162.21   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   160     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01660 06/16/22   2 Fencing for beach                     3,162.21   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   161     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01661 06/22/22   1 M2680 ALESANDRINI ROPE GLOVES            38.00   2-01-25-265-032             Budget        Aprv   162     1
                                                                       FIRE - CLOTHING & UNIFORMS              
22-01662 06/27/22   1 KEYS, FASTENERS AND SNIPS                24.63   2-01-28-370-026             Budget        Aprv   163     1
                                                                       REC CNTR- MAINT OF OTHER EQUIP          
22-01663 06/15/22   1 1825756-1825760 - Parts                 600.01   2-01-26-290-026             Budget        Aprv   164     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF EQUIPT OVER 1 TON      
22-01664 05/31/22   1 ESO-78494 JUNE MONTHLY FEE              111.00   2-01-25-265-036             Budget        Aprv   165     1
                                                                       FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                  
22-01664 06/27/22   2 ESO-80759 JULY MONTHLY FEE              111.00   2-01-25-265-036             Budget        Aprv   166     1
                                                                       FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                  
22-01665 06/06/22   1 S03136 JUNE BASE FEE                    157.59   2-01-25-265-094             Budget        Aprv   167     1
                                                                       FIRE - MEDICAL SUPPLIES                 
22-01666 06/15/22   1 33858-34126 - Stumps & Tree Pa          414.05   2-01-26-290-058             Budget        Aprv   168     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPL           
22-01667 06/08/22   1 Proclamation Frames                       4.13   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   169     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01668 06/15/22   1 Balance - Monthly                        49.84   2-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   170     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 11   
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
22-01668 06/15/22   2 Bal Monthly                              10.79   2-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   171     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
22-01668 06/23/22   3 80019 - Wire A                           64.80   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   172     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01668 06/23/22   4 148599-148598 Starters                  631.60   2-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   173     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
22-01669 06/15/22   1 9293180080-9293881604 - Seals            84.38   2-01-26-290-038             Budget        Aprv   174     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-GEN HDWR & MINOR TOOLS          
22-01670 06/17/22   1 Herald Legal Ads                      2,307.91   2-01-20-120-021             Budget        Aprv   175     1
                                                                       MUN CLK- LEGAL ADVERTISING              
22-01671 05/31/22   1 Supplies for City Hall                   40.96   2-01-26-310-054             Budget        Aprv   176     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-ELEC LTG/EQUIP            
22-01671 06/02/22   2 09439776022  WOOD FOR BURN ROO          692.00   2-01-25-265-042             Budget        Aprv   177     1
                                                                       FIRE DEPT - EDUCATION                   
22-01671 06/05/22   3 41895 - Supplies                         60.47   2-01-26-290-055             Budget        Aprv   178     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PLBING/AC/HTG EQUIP             
22-01671 06/06/22   4 0949778382 WOOD FOR BURN ROOM           228.06   2-01-25-265-042             Budget        Aprv   179     1
                                                                       FIRE DEPT - EDUCATION                   
22-01671 06/06/22   5 PAINT AND MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES          270.31   2-01-28-380-058             Budget        Aprv   180     1
                                                                       LFGDS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
22-01671 06/06/22   6 Supplies for Lighthouse repair           48.46   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   181     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01671 06/07/22   7 0943000180040 RETURN EXTRA WOO          164.98-  2-01-25-265-042             Budget        Aprv   182     1
                                                                       FIRE DEPT - EDUCATION                   
22-01671 06/08/22   8 54658 - Supplies                         76.48   2-01-26-290-038             Budget        Aprv   183     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-GEN HDWR & MINOR TOOLS          
22-01671 06/13/22   9 13535 - Supplies                        112.89   2-01-26-290-038             Budget        Aprv   184     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-GEN HDWR & MINOR TOOLS          
22-01671 06/14/22  10 23735 - Supplies                        119.48   2-01-26-290-038             Budget        Aprv   185     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-GEN HDWR & MINOR TOOLS          
22-01671 06/17/22  11 89654 - Plywood                          64.88   2-01-26-290-058             Budget        Aprv   186     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPL           
22-01671 06/18/22  12 34617 - Nails & Bolts                    78.71   2-01-26-290-096             Budget        Aprv   187     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - STREET SIGNS                  
22-01671 06/20/22  13 cccc                                     86.32   2-01-26-290-038             Budget        Aprv   188     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-GEN HDWR & MINOR TOOLS          
22-01671 06/23/22  14 48666 - Cleaner                          34.99   2-01-26-290-055             Budget        Aprv   189     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-PLBING/AC/HTG EQUIP             
22-01671 06/27/22  15 09436144380 SPRAY PAINT FOR  T           12.96   2-01-25-265-026             Budget        Aprv   190     1
                                                                       FIRE - EQUIPMENT MAINT                  
22-01671 06/28/22  16 2022 regular spending                    29.91   2-01-25-265-036             Budget        Aprv   191     1
                                                                       FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                  
22-01672 06/05/22   1 020804 - Supplies                        93.18   2-01-26-290-038             Budget        Aprv   192     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-GEN HDWR & MINOR TOOLS          
22-01673 06/23/22   1 354157 - Degreaser                      360.71   2-01-26-290-030             Budget        Aprv   193     1
                                                                       PUB WKS CHEMICALS AND GASES             
22-01674 06/02/22   1 office supplies                          77.99   2-01-20-120-036             Budget        Aprv   194     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01675 06/23/22   1 27085 - 12 Volt 12 Tooth                490.00   2-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   195     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
22-01676 06/08/22   1 10053 TANK TOPS FOR CHEER CLIN          495.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   196     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 12   
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01676 06/09/22   2 10054 TANK TOP FOR CHEER CLINI           15.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   197     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01676 06/21/22   3 10064 TOWELS FOR MISS NORTH WI          300.00   T-03-56-200-011             Budget        Aprv   198     1
                                                                       TOURIST DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION          
22-01677 06/15/22   1 121731 - GJ5Z                           375.17   2-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   199     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
22-01678 06/09/22   1 38709 BASKETBALLS                       960.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   200     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01679 06/09/22   1 40450 STAFF UNIFORMS                    797.00   2-01-28-380-043             Budget        Aprv   201     1
                                                                       LIFEGUARDS - UNIFORMS                   
22-01679 06/22/22   2 40379 SWEATS                          2,978.00   2-01-28-380-043             Budget        Aprv   202     1
                                                                       LIFEGUARDS - UNIFORMS                   
22-01679 06/22/22   3 40413 SHORTS                            282.50   2-01-28-380-043             Budget        Aprv   203     1
                                                                       LIFEGUARDS - UNIFORMS                   
22-01680 06/02/22   1 SM-59788 ANNUITY CONTRACT BILL        1,575.00   2-01-25-265-094             Budget        Aprv   204     1
                                                                       FIRE - MEDICAL SUPPLIES                 
22-01681 06/15/22   1 19-98402 - Tires                      1,331.18   2-01-26-290-026             Budget        Aprv   205     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF EQUIPT OVER 1 TON      
22-01681 06/23/22   2 19-98641 - tires                        900.00   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   206     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01682 06/08/22   1 SASH, TIARA, TROPHIES FOR MISS          150.66   T-03-56-200-011             Budget        Aprv   207     1
                                                                       TOURIST DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION          
22-01683 06/08/22   1 NJRPA Membership Renewal                225.00   2-01-28-370-044             Budget        Aprv   208     1
                                                                       REC CTR-PROF ASSOC DUES                 
22-01684 06/01/22   1 Safety supplies B&G Dept.               324.26   2-01-26-310-056             Budget        Aprv   209     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS-SAFETY EQUIP              
22-01684 06/01/22   2 Safety Supplies for B&G                  46.08   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   210     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01685 06/24/22   1 EZ Pass                                 100.00   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   211     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01686 06/07/22   1 00031915  JANITORIAL ITEMS               82.71   2-01-28-370-035             Budget        Aprv   212     1
                                                                       REC CTR - JANITORIAL SUPPLIES           
22-01686 06/08/22   2 00031933 - Supplies                     966.03   2-01-26-290-052             Budget        Aprv   213     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-JANITORIAL EQUIP                
22-01686 06/18/22   3 00032507 - Supplies                     545.57   2-01-26-290-052             Budget        Aprv   214     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-JANITORIAL EQUIP                
22-01687 06/29/22   1 30447 TUNE UP FOR JET SKI               224.40   2-01-28-380-058             Budget        Aprv   215     1
                                                                       LFGDS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
22-01687 06/29/22   2 30894 TUNE UP FOR JET SKI               307.41   2-01-28-380-058             Budget        Aprv   216     1
                                                                       LFGDS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
22-01687 06/29/22   3 30411 TUNE UP FOR YAMAHA                224.40   2-01-28-380-058             Budget        Aprv   217     1
                                                                       LFGDS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
22-01687 06/29/22   4 100498973 PRIOR PAYMENT (CREDI            6.64-  2-01-28-380-058             Budget        Aprv   218     1
                                                                       LFGDS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
22-01688 05/31/22   1 Supplies for B&G Dept.                  116.24   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   219     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01688 05/31/22   2 Supplies for B&G Dept.                   31.85   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   220     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01688 06/28/22   3 24v coil B&G                             18.96   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   221     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01689 06/15/22   1 Paper Towels                            170.97   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   222     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 13   
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01690 06/21/22   1 438638  FIRST AID SUPPLIES              100.27   2-01-28-380-096             Budget        Aprv   223     1
                                                                       LIFEGUARDS -FIRST AID SUPPLIES          
22-01690 06/27/22   2 435038,435804,436372,437597,43        1,315.33   2-01-25-265-094             Budget        Aprv   224     1
                                                                       FIRE - MEDICAL SUPPLIES                 
22-01691 06/01/22   1 01645262 OXYGEN CYLINDER RENT            44.95   2-01-25-265-094             Budget        Aprv   225     1
                                                                       FIRE - MEDICAL SUPPLIES                 
22-01691 06/15/22   2 01645894 - Rentals                      178.25   2-01-26-290-030             Budget        Aprv   226     1
                                                                       PUB WKS CHEMICALS AND GASES             
22-01692 06/03/22   1 SMELTZER AND SONS Snow fencing        4,957.72   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   227     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01692 06/24/22   2 Snow fencing                          1,679.76   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   228     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01693 06/15/22   1 76788-76638-76770-76615 - Unif        2,200.00   2-01-26-290-043             Budget        Aprv   229     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - UNIFORM ALLOWANCE             
22-01693 06/23/22   2 76752 - Uniform allowance               548.71   2-01-26-290-043             Budget        Aprv   230     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - UNIFORM ALLOWANCE             
22-01694 06/04/22   1 Office Supplies                          38.11   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   231     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01694 06/15/22   2 Supplies                                147.10   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   232     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01694 06/18/22   3 7359153160-000001 TONER                  86.99   2-01-28-380-036             Budget        Aprv   233     1
                                                                       LIFEGDS - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01694 06/25/22   4 Calculator                               79.99   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   234     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01694 06/25/22   5 Printer Ink                             121.57   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   235     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01694 06/29/22   6 Ink                                      89.97   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   236     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01695 06/21/22   1 PRIZES FOR 4TH OF JULY PARADE           180.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   237     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01696 06/08/22   1 NWSC Prizes - Equipment                  35.98   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   238     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01696 06/09/22   2 SEI SOCCER.COM - Purchase NWSC          129.98   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   239     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01696 06/14/22   3 NWSC Prizes - Equipment                  64.76   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   240     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01696 06/22/22   4 NWSC Prizes - Equipment                 918.32   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   241     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01696 06/25/22   5 NWSC Prizes - Equipment                  12.36   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   242     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01696 06/24/22   6 NWSC Prizes - Equipment                 420.07   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   243     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01697 05/31/22   1 RRR-15147 - Trash & Recycle La           29.74-  G-02-40-100-230             Budget        Aprv   244     1
                                                                       2021 Clean Communities                  
22-01698 06/21/22   1 FG Ubolt                                 41.96   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   245     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01698 06/28/22   2 Supplies for B&G                         85.98   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   246     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01699 06/02/22   1 desc here                                84.00   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   247     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01699 06/02/22   2 background                               28.00   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   248     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 14   
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01699 06/02/22   3 desc here                                28.00   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   249     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01699 06/02/22   4 desc here                               534.00   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   250     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01699 06/03/22   5 desc here                                28.00-  2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   251     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01699 06/03/22   6 desc here                                84.00-  2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   252     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01699 06/03/22   7 desc here                                28.00-  2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   253     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01700 06/23/22   1 USCG AUXILIARY BOATING SAFETY           250.00   2-01-28-380-042             Budget        Aprv   254     1
                                                                       LIFEGDS - EDUCATION & TRAINING          
22-01701 06/03/22   1 Mailing a Letter                          8.70   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   255     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01701 06/27/22   2 955 - Return Postage                     12.90   2-01-26-290-036             Budget        Aprv   256     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01702 06/14/22   1 150138219  LOCKERS FOR LADIES           573.86   2-01-28-380-058             Budget        Aprv   257     1
                                                                       LFGDS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPLIES          
22-01703 06/13/22   1 Delivering a Package                     14.40   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   258     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01704 06/03/22   1 Clearinghouse Requirement                25.00   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   259     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01705 06/22/22   1 Business Cards                          124.49   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   260     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01706 06/01/22   1 322715 - Oil Filter                       1.54   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   261     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/01/22   2 322771 - Rotellat1                       21.62   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   262     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/02/22   3 322797 - Fuel Oil Mix                    38.08   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   263     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/02/22   4 322801 - Wheel Weights                   37.26   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   264     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/02/22   5 32287 - Filter                           21.41   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   265     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/02/22   6 322813 - Filter - Credit                 21.41-  2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   266     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/03/22   7 322867 - Wheel Weight                    29.98   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   267     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/06/22   8 323060 - Spark Plug wire Sets           382.28   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   268     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/08/22   9 323244 - Drum Brake Adjust Kit          123.35   2-01-26-290-026             Budget        Aprv   269     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF EQUIPT OVER 1 TON      
22-01706 06/08/22  10 323246 - Coolant Temp Sensor             27.00   2-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   270     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
22-01706 06/09/22  11 323334 - Connector & filters             31.14   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   271     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/10/22  12 323398 - Spark Plug                      13.08   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   272     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/11/22  13 323493 - Solenoid                        52.94   2-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   273     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
22-01706 06/13/22  14 323571 - Aviation Grease                471.10   2-01-26-290-026             Budget        Aprv   274     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 15   
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF EQUIPT OVER 1 TON      
22-01706 06/13/22  15 323577 - Air Filter                      32.62   2-01-26-290-026             Budget        Aprv   275     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF EQUIPT OVER 1 TON      
22-01706 06/13/22  16 323573 - Connectors & Capsules           42.33   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   276     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/14/22  17 323653 - Core Deposits - Credi           98.00-  2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   277     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/14/22  18 323632 - Solenoid                        26.03   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   278     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/15/22  19 323713 - Air Filter                      39.14   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   279     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/16/22  20 323798  Spark Plug                       19.62   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   280     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/18/22  21 323945 - Solder Pellets                  21.00   2-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   281     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
22-01706 06/17/22  22 323884 - Battery Cables                 247.72   2-01-26-290-026             Budget        Aprv   282     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF EQUIPT OVER 1 TON      
22-01706 06/21/22  23 324131 - Therm Housing                  119.32   2-01-26-290-026             Budget        Aprv   283     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF EQUIPT OVER 1 TON      
22-01706 06/22/22  24 324202 - Battery Cables & Lugs          131.69   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   284     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/23/22  25 324332 - Sensor                          51.96   2-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   285     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
22-01706 06/23/22  26 324310 - Belt Idler Pulley               64.77   2-01-26-290-026             Budget        Aprv   286     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF EQUIPT OVER 1 TON      
22-01706 06/23/22  27 324297 - Oil Stabilizers                 85.16   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   287     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/23/22  28 324313 - Spark Plug et & Ignit          187.64   2-01-26-290-026             Budget        Aprv   288     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF EQUIPT OVER 1 TON      
22-01706 06/23/22  29 324299 - Antifreeze Reservoir            20.34   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   289     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/24/22  30 324350 - Shoes - Rotor - Hardw          319.08   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   290     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/27/22  31 324490 - Spark Plug & Ignition          135.66   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   291     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/27/22  32 324495 - Gasket Set                      40.70   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   292     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/28/22  33 324608 - Core Deposit - Wty Ba          151.20   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   293     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01706 06/28/22  34 324556 - Core Deposit - Credit           81.00-  2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   294     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01707 06/22/22   1 ITEMS FOR JR. LIFEGUARD PROGRA           93.54   T-03-56-190-014             Budget        Aprv   295     1
                                                                       REC TRUST-JUNIOR LIFEGUARDS             
22-01708 05/31/22   1 Cooler Rental                             4.75   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   296     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01708 06/01/22   2 Office Supplies                         129.68   2-01-26-310-036             Budget        Aprv   297     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS- OFFICE SUPPL             
22-01708 06/02/22   3 Water for B&G                            44.70   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   298     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01708 06/03/22   4 Water                                    53.64   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   299     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01708 06/09/22   5 Office Supplies                          91.92   2-01-43-490-036             Budget        Aprv   300     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 16   
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       MUN CT - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01708 06/15/22   6 Water                                    95.76   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   301     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01708 06/16/22   7 WB Mason Co - Purchase                  164.73   2-01-20-120-036             Budget        Aprv   302     1
                                                                       MUN CLK - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01708 06/20/22   8 Water                                    26.82   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   303     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01708 06/23/22   9 desc here                               496.01   2-01-20-150-028             Budget        Aprv   304     1
                                                                       ASMT OF TX - OTHER PROF/CONS            
22-01708 06/24/22  10 Coffee                                   98.10   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv   305     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
22-01708 06/27/22  11 WB Mason Office Supplies                 47.97   2-01-20-145-036             Budget        Aprv   306     1
                                                                       TAX COL- OFFICE SUPPL                   
22-01708 06/29/22  12 Water                                    71.52   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   307     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01708 06/28/22  13 Amazon Refund                            41.78-  T-03-56-195-011             Budget        Aprv   308     1
                                                                       HEREFORD LIGHTHOUSE TRUST               
22-01709 06/01/22   1 S0414304  TOWELS                         89.81   2-01-28-370-035             Budget        Aprv   309     1
                                                                       REC CTR - JANITORIAL SUPPLIES           
22-01710 06/15/22   1 0179710 - Rain Jackets                  500.00   2-01-26-290-058             Budget        Aprv   310     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPL           
22-01710 06/15/22   2 179848 - Rain Jackets                   250.00   2-01-26-290-058             Budget        Aprv   311     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPL           
22-01711 06/18/22   1 Zoom Monthly                             29.98   2-01-20-100-053             Budget        Aprv   312     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE EQUIPMENT              
22-01712 06/29/22   1 SO27284805 - Pet Waste Bags             689.25   2-01-26-290-052             Budget        Aprv   313     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-JANITORIAL EQUIP                
22-01713 06/27/22   1 Spotify USA - Purchase                   17.01   2-01-25-240-036             Budget        Aprv   314     1
                                                                       POLICE - OFFICE SUPPLIES                
22-01714 06/22/22   1 ITEMS FOR JR. LIFEGUARD PROGRA           15.99   T-03-56-190-014             Budget        Aprv   315     1
                                                                       REC TRUST-JUNIOR LIFEGUARDS             
22-01715 06/16/22   1 64441 - Parts                           862.68   2-01-26-290-025             Budget        Aprv   316     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-MAINT OF VEHICLES UNDER 1 TON   
22-01716 06/07/22   1 Supplies for B&G                      1,904.21   2-01-26-310-058             Budget        Aprv   317     1
                                                                       Buildings&Grounds Other Equip/Supplies  
22-01717 06/10/22   1 desc here                                10.00   2-01-21-185-042             Budget        Aprv   318     1
                                                                       PLANNING & ZONING-EDUCATION & TRAINING  
22-01718 06/10/22   1 00839-309054 Windshied for 202          911.63   2-01-26-290-027             Budget        Aprv   319     1
                                                                       PUB WKS MAINT CITY FLEET UNDER 1 TON    
22-01719 06/21/22   1 HQ-277290 BACKSTAYS FOR SOCCER          505.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv   320     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01720 06/23/22   1 NWil - CDL                           15,500.00   2-01-26-290-042             Budget        Aprv   321     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-EDUCATION & TRAINING            
22-01721 06/01/22   1 2967 - CDL Lunch                         60.00   2-01-26-290-058             Budget        Aprv   322     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPL           
                                                           88,446.62 
 

                        Count    Line Items                Amount
        Checks:            60           322            309,924.62 
 
There are NO errors or warnings in this listing.



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 17   
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 18   
01:31 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Totals by Year-Fund
Fund Description                      Fund        Budget Total    Revenue Total        G/L Total            Total 

 
                                      2-01          242,663.71             0.00             0.00       242,663.71                   
 
                                      C-04           28,111.92             0.00             0.00        28,111.92                   
 
                                      G-02               29.74-            0.00             0.00            29.74-                  
 
                                      T-03           39,178.73             0.00             0.00        39,178.73                   
 
                   Total Of All Funds:              309,924.62             0.00             0.00       309,924.62                   

                                                        G/L Posting Summary
 
Account                      Description                                    Debits           Credits
 
2-01-101-01-100-011          CASH-CURRENT FUND                                512.03        243,175.74 
2-01-201-20-000-000          CURRENT YEAR APPROPRIATIONS                  243,175.74            512.03 
                                     Totals for Fund 2-01   :             243,687.77        243,687.77                              
 
2-02-101-01-000-000          DUE FROM CURRENT                                  29.74              0.00 
2-02-213-40-700-230          2021 Clean Communities                             0.00             29.74 
                                     Totals for Fund 2-02   :                  29.74             29.74                              
 
2-03-101-01-000-009          CASH - UCC -THIRD PARTY                            0.00         22,275.00 
2-03-101-01-000-024          CASH - RECREATION CTR TRUST FD                     0.00         13,117.32 
2-03-101-01-000-026          CASH - HEREFORD LIGHTHOUSE FD                     41.78              0.00 
2-03-101-01-000-027          CASH-RECREATION TRUST-JR LIFEGUARDS                0.00            109.53 
2-03-101-01-000-028          CASH - TOURIST DEV COMMISSION                      0.00          3,718.66 
2-03-286-56-854-802          RES FOR UCC - THIRD PARTY                     22,275.00              0.00 
2-03-286-56-862-801          RESERVE FOR RECREATION CTR                    13,117.32              0.00 
2-03-286-56-863-801          RESERVE FOR HEREFORD LIGHTHSE                      0.00             41.78 
2-03-286-56-863-804          RESERVE FOR RECREATION-JR LIFEGUARDS             109.53              0.00 
2-03-286-56-864-801          RESERVE FOR TOURIST DEVLPMT                    3,718.66              0.00 
                                     Totals for Fund 2-03   :              39,262.29         39,262.29                              
 
2-04-101-01-000-000          CASH-CAPITAL FUND                                  0.00         28,111.92 
2-04-215-55-900-000          IMPROVEMENT AUTHORIZATIONS                    28,111.92              0.00 
                                     Totals for Fund 2-04   :              28,111.92         28,111.92                              
 
                                                 Grand Total:             311,091.72        311,091.72                              



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 1    
01:32 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Batch Id: NPL 2     Batch Type: C   Batch Date: 07/19/22  Checking Account: CREST            G/L Credit: Budget G/L Credit
Generate Direct Deposit: Y

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

Dir Dep     07/19/22   01445    ACTION UNIFORM CO.                     3164 FIRE RD                                                 
22-01497 07/01/22   1 Uniforms                              1,512.00   2-01-25-240-032             Budget        Aprv     5     1
                                                                       POLICE - CLOTHING & UNIFORMS            
22-01539 07/08/22   1 Equipment                             1,120.00   2-01-25-240-032             Budget        Aprv    26     1
                                                                       POLICE - CLOTHING & UNIFORMS            
22-01542 07/08/22   1 Name Strips                             297.00   2-01-25-240-032             Budget        Aprv    28     1
                                                                       POLICE - CLOTHING & UNIFORMS            
22-01620 07/13/22   1 Polo's                                  790.00   2-01-25-240-032             Budget        Aprv    82     1
                                                                       POLICE - CLOTHING & UNIFORMS            
                                                            3,719.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   01480    ANDREW HACKETT                         64 halbe ln W                                                
22-01564 07/11/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                   50.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    38     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                               50.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   01968    ANTHONY STEFANELLI                     505 E 12 AVE                                                 
22-01513 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                   413.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    16     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
22-01591 07/12/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  400.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    67     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              813.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   02293    MICHAEL J BROWN SR                     100 SEABREEZE CT                                             
22-01559 07/11/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  200.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    33     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              200.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   02407    BRIAN M ONUSKANYCH                     1700 CENTRAL AVE                                             
22-01511 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                   100.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    14     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              100.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   02667    BARBARA GEVAUDAN                       2105 TIDEWATER AVE                                           
22-01570 07/12/22   1 LINE DANCING INSTRUCTOR                  35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    42     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01570 07/12/22   2 LINE DANCING INSTRUCTOR                  35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    43     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01570 07/12/22   3 LINE DANCING INSTRUCTOR                  35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    44     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01570 07/12/22   4 LINE DANCING INSTRUCTOR                  35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    45     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01570 07/12/22   5 LINE DANCING INSTRUCTOR                  35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    46     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01570 07/12/22   6 LINE DANCING INSTRUCTOR                  35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    47     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              210.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   03413    CHRIS ALTOMARI                         407 E 22ND AVE UNIT 200                                      



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 2    
01:32 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

22-01557 07/11/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                   50.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    31     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                               50.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   03441    CME ASSOCIATES                         1460 ROUTE SOUTH 9                                           
22-01485 07/01/22   1 AFFORDABLE HOUSING PLANNER               84.00   2-01-20-100-028             Budget        Aprv     4     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - PROF/ CONSULTANT              
                                                               84.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   03721    CULLEN AND DYKMAN LLP                  100 QUENTIN ROOSEVELT BLVVD                                  
22-01643 07/14/22   1 Dispute Re Shore Protection             265.00   2-01-20-155-027             Budget        Aprv    86     1
                                                                       LEGAL SERV-PROF SERVICES                
                                                              265.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   04395    DANIEL O'CONNELL                       187 MAURICE BLVD                                             
22-01619 07/13/22   1 SUMMER BBALL REFEREE - HS               160.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    81     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              160.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   04506    ROBERT DAVIS                           100 CENTRAL AVENUE                                           
22-01561 07/11/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  400.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    35     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   04532    ZACHARY DEVOE                          620 W PINE AVENUE , APT 14                                   
22-01516 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                   689.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    19     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
22-01594 07/12/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  208.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    70     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              897.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   06733    FOLEY CAT                              2975 GALLOWAY RD                                             
22-01646 07/14/22   1 RENTAL                                4,856.00   C-04-55-863-010             Budget        Aprv    87     1
                                                                       ORD 1863- BUILDINGS, GROUNDS, BEACH     
                                                            4,856.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   06961    FRANCIS G NOLAN                        510 MULBERRY AVE                                             
22-01510 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                    50.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    13     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
22-01590 07/12/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  400.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    66     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              450.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   06994    DOUGLAS B FORD                         509 W ANDREW AVE                                             
22-01563 07/11/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  400.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    37     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   08082    KERRY HALL                             509 W. MULBERRY AVENUE                                       
22-01582 07/12/22   1 SUMMER BBALL LEAGUE REF - 6-8           175.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    57     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01582 07/12/22   2 SUMMER BBALL LEAGUE REF - 6-8           175.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    58     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 3    
01:32 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              350.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   08766    herbert porter                         115 TEAL RD                                                  
22-01512 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                   126.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    15     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              126.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   10005    James A Munda                          528 E 6th Ave, Unit 2nd Fl                                   
22-01515 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                   900.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    18     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
22-01593 07/12/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  450.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    69     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                            1,350.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   10431    JESSICA DONAHUE                        116 E HEATHER RD                                             
22-01571 07/12/22   1 SUNSET YOGA INSTRUCTOR                   35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    48     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01571 07/12/22   2 SUNSET YOGA INSTRUCTOR                   35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    49     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01571 07/12/22   3 CARDIO FIT INSTRUCTOR                    35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    50     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01571 07/12/22   4 SUNSET YOGA INSTRUCTOR                   35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    51     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01571 07/12/22   5 CARDIO FIT INSTRUCTOR                    35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    52     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              175.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   10816    JOHN AUGUSTINO                         107 E 8TH AVE                                                
22-01503 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                   400.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv     7     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   12032    DAVID LINDSAY                          Volunteer Stipends                                           
22-01566 07/11/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  150.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    40     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              150.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   12433    LORI RYAN                              650 STREAM RIDGE LANE                                        
22-01609 07/13/22   1 SUMMER BBALL REFEREE - HS               160.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    72     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01609 07/13/22   2 SUMMER BBALL REFEREE - 6TH-8TH          175.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    73     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              335.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   12486    LESLIE CLINE                           1801 NEW YORK AVE                                            
22-01560 07/11/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  400.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    34     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   13001    ADAM MC GRAW                                                                                        
22-01541 07/08/22   1 Parking/Lunch Reimbursement              40.00   2-01-25-240-042             Budget        Aprv    27     1



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 4    
01:32 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                                       POLICE - EDUCATION & TRAINING           
                                                               40.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   13348    MICHELE BARBARO                        546 KESSEL AVE                                               
22-01572 07/12/22   1 YOGA INSTRUCTOR                          35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    53     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01572 07/12/22   2 YOGA INSTRUCTOR                          35.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    54     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                               70.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   13497    MARIANNA PAPAZOGLOU                    1708 NEW YORK AVE                                            
22-01569 07/12/22   1 BUCKETS BBALL CAMP TRAINER              475.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    41     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              475.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   13631    MATTHEW J MCCRORY JR                   305 E 8TH AVE                                                
22-01587 07/12/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  400.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    63     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   13934    JOHN P MCCORMICK JR                    6 carter braxton building                                    
22-01612 07/13/22   1 SUMMER BBALL REF - 3RD-5TH GR.          150.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    77     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01612 07/13/22   2 SUMMER BBALL REF - 3RD-5TH GR.          150.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    78     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01612 07/13/22   3 SUMMER BBALL REF - 3RD-5TH GR.          150.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    79     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              450.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   14306    NORTON LIFE LOCK,INC                   60 E RIO SALADO PKWY                                         
22-01634 07/14/22   1 Service Fee                              67.35   2-01-20-100-036             Budget        Aprv    83     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - OFFICE SUPPLIES               
                                                               67.35 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   14392    NEHMAD DAVIS & GOLDSTIEN PC            4030 OCEAN HEIGHTS AVE                                       
22-01638 07/14/22   1 Pillegi, Sperduto, Cassidy              662.50   2-01-20-155-027             Budget        Aprv    84     1
                                                                       LEGAL SERV-PROF SERVICES                
                                                              662.50 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   15066    STEVE RANSOM                                                                                        
22-01498 07/01/22   1 Lunch Reimbursement                      75.46   2-01-25-240-042             Budget        Aprv     6     1
                                                                       POLICE - EDUCATION & TRAINING           
                                                               75.46 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   15245    ONE CALL CONCEPTS, INC                 7223 PARKWAY DRIVE                                           
22-01517 07/05/22   1 Locates                                 112.97   2-01-26-290-058             Budget        Aprv    20     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPL           
22-01517 07/05/22   2 Voice Tickets                            12.50   2-01-26-290-058             Budget        Aprv    21     1
                                                                       PUB WKS - OTHER EQUIP & SUPPL           
                                                              125.47 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   16214    PINELANDS CONSTRUCTION LLC             300 77TH STREET                                              



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 5    
01:32 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

22-01533 07/08/22   1 JUNE 2022 TRASH COLLECTING           73,303.67   2-01-32-465-099             Budget        Aprv    24     1
                                                                       GARBAGE COLLECTION COSTS                
22-01533 07/08/22   2 JUNE 2022 TRASH COLLECTING            9,225.00   2-01-32-465-099             Budget        Aprv    25     1
                                                                       GARBAGE COLLECTION COSTS                
                                                           82,528.67 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   18364    RICHARD DAVIS                          304 E 14TH AVR                                               
22-01562 07/11/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  400.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    36     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   18376    Nicholas R Cripps                      3223 Philadelphia Pike                                       
22-01558 07/11/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  500.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    32     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              500.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   18477    RYAN LEWANDOWSKI                       402 E 26 ST                                                  
22-01565 07/11/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  550.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    39     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              550.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   18699    RODMAN MEYER                           137 W SWEET BRIAR RD                                         
22-01507 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                   200.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    10     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              200.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   18732    ROBERT J NOCELLA                                                                                    
22-01509 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                    50.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    12     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
22-01589 07/12/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                   50.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    65     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              100.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   18773    TRAVIS MOLE                            505 WEST PINE AVE                                            
22-01508 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                    50.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    11     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
22-01588 07/12/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                   50.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    64     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              100.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   18853    ROBERT A MATTEUCCI                     1410 NEW YORK AVE                                            
22-01505 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                   400.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv     9     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
22-01586 07/12/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  400.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    62     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              800.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   190051   TIMOTHY MUMFORD                        404 ALDERBROKE DRIVE                                         
22-01576 07/12/22   1 SOCCER CAMP TRAINER 1/2 DAY             252.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    56     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              252.00 
 



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 6    
01:32 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

Dir Dep     07/19/22   190056   MICHAEL RACCHUBINSKI                   1426 S. 3RD STREET                                           
22-01615 07/13/22   1 BUCKETS BBALL CAMP COACH                400.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    80     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              400.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   19199    JOHN STEVENSON                                                                                      
22-01543 07/08/22   1 Parking Reimbursement                    20.00   2-01-25-240-042             Budget        Aprv    29     1
                                                                       POLICE - EDUCATION & TRAINING           
                                                               20.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   19443    SHORE QUALITY CLEANING                 91 CORSON TAVERN RD                                          
22-01519 07/05/22   1 June DPW B/G Offie Cleaning             460.00   2-01-26-310-021             Budget        Aprv    23     1
                                                                       BLDGS & GRNDS - CONTR SVCS              
                                                              460.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   19517    KIMBERLY STOCKS                        6712 CINNAMINSON COURT                                       
22-01611 07/13/22   1 SUMMER BBALL REF - 3RD-5TH              150.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    74     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01611 07/13/22   2 SUMMER BBALL REF - 3RD-5TH              150.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    75     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01611 07/13/22   3 SUMMER BBALL REF - 3RD-5TH              150.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    76     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              450.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   19673    SEA BOX INC                            1 SEA BOX DRIVE                                              
22-01647 07/14/22   1 RENTAL                                  750.00   C-04-55-863-010             Budget        Aprv    88     1
                                                                       ORD 1863- BUILDINGS, GROUNDS, BEACH     
                                                              750.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   19689    STARR GENERAL CONTRACTING              3017 DELSEA DR                                               
22-01518 07/05/22   1 Portable Restrooms - June 2022       18,715.00   2-01-26-290-052             Budget        Aprv    22     1
                                                                       PUB WKS-JANITORIAL EQUIP                
                                                           18,715.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   20463    THOMAS J RAIMO                         103 w 26th ave                                               
22-01583 07/12/22   1 SUMMER LEAGUE BBALL REF - HS            160.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    59     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
22-01583 07/12/22   2 SUMMER LEAGUE BBALL REF - HS            160.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    60     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       
                                                              320.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   22024    VAN NOTE-HARVEY ASSOCIATES             211 BAYBERRY DRIVE                                           
22-01722 07/14/22   1 23208 muni eng                        8,086.75   2-01-20-165-027             Budget        Aprv    89     1
                                                                       ENGINEERING SERVICES                    
22-01722 07/14/22   2 sjg street opening                   22,206.50   SO 412                      Project       Aprv    90     1
                                                                       SJ GAS CO INFRAST. IMPROVEMENT
22-01722 07/14/22   3 46281 verizon                           277.50   SO 570                      Project       Aprv    91     1
                                                                       VERIZON:VARIOUS STREET OPENING
22-01722 07/14/22   4 36281 angleea drive                      19.50   SO 644                      Project       Aprv    92     1
                                                                       211-213 Anglesea drive        
22-01722 07/14/22   5 36281 munisite                           97.50   SO 642                      Project       Aprv    93     1
                                                                       CONCEALMENT POLE              



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 7    
01:32 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

22-01722 07/14/22   6 42805 5th ave feasability               360.00   2-01-20-165-027             Budget        Aprv    94     1
                                                                       ENGINEERING SERVICES                    
22-01722 07/14/22   7 42922 hereford ave pump statio       11,112.75   C-04-55-826-010             Budget        Aprv    95     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1826-STORM WATER PUMP STATION 
22-01722 07/14/22   8 43480 lou booth                         379.50   C-04-55-863-010             Budget        Aprv    96     1
                                                                       ORD 1863- BUILDINGS, GROUNDS, BEACH     
22-01722 07/14/22   9 43611 seawall                         7,533.60   C-04-55-863-010             Budget        Aprv    97     1
                                                                       ORD 1863- BUILDINGS, GROUNDS, BEACH     
22-01722 07/14/22  10 43812 seaport fire supression           289.50   C-04-55-863-010             Budget        Aprv    98     1
                                                                       ORD 1863- BUILDINGS, GROUNDS, BEACH     
22-01722 07/14/22  11 44323 spruce ave gateway             24,700.00   C-04-55-849-010             Budget        Aprv    99     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1849 - STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS
22-01722 07/14/22  12 44459 trench restore contract           180.00   2-01-20-165-027             Budget        Aprv   100     1
                                                                       ENGINEERING SERVICES                    
22-01722 07/14/22  13 44463 22nd beach access                 360.00   C-04-55-863-010             Budget        Aprv   101     1
                                                                       ORD 1863- BUILDINGS, GROUNDS, BEACH     
22-01722 07/14/22  14 45649 2021 emergency beach fil       59,003.71   C-04-55-863-010             Budget        Aprv   102     1
                                                                       ORD 1863- BUILDINGS, GROUNDS, BEACH     
22-01722 07/14/22  15 45655 police reno                     2,644.50   C-04-55-863-010             Budget        Aprv   103     1
                                                                       ORD 1863- BUILDINGS, GROUNDS, BEACH     
22-01722 07/14/22  16 45661 dpw complex                       684.00   2-01-20-165-027             Budget        Aprv   104     1
                                                                       ENGINEERING SERVICES                    
22-01722 07/14/22  17 45663 1st n ny emergency                360.00   C-04-55-849-010             Budget        Aprv   105     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1849 - STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS
22-01722 07/14/22  18 45822 223 w 23rd emergency               58.50   C-04-55-849-010             Budget        Aprv   106     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1849 - STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS
22-01722 07/14/22  19 45825 780 allen dr emergency            180.00   C-04-55-849-010             Budget        Aprv   107     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1849 - STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS
22-01722 07/14/22  20 45837 14th n deleware emergenc        3,126.50   C-04-55-849-010             Budget        Aprv   108     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1849 - STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS
22-01722 07/14/22  21 45838 25th n ny emergency             1,788.75   C-04-55-849-010             Budget        Aprv   109     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1849 - STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS
22-01722 07/14/22  22 45839 13th n surf emergency           3,307.50   C-04-55-849-010             Budget        Aprv   110     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1849 - STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS
22-01722 07/14/22  23 45840 730 allen dr emergency            189.75   C-04-55-849-010             Budget        Aprv   111     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1849 - STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS
22-01722 07/14/22  24 45841 brdwlk repairs                  1,659.00   C-04-55-849-010             Budget        Aprv   112     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1849 - STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS
22-01722 07/14/22  25 45842 w 16th emergency                  729.75   C-04-55-849-010             Budget        Aprv   113     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1849 - STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS
22-01722 07/14/22  26 45843 2nd and central emergenc        1,973.75   C-04-55-849-010             Budget        Aprv   114     1
                                                                       ORDINANCE 1849 - STREETS,ROADS,BULKHEADS
                                                          151,308.81 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   22077    KEYSTONE RIDGE DESIGNS, INC            670 MERCER ROAD                                              
22-00292 02/07/22   1 BRDWLK Benches                       36,086.00   T-03-56-210-016             Budget        Aprv     1     1
                                                                       MEMORIALS AND BEAUTIFICATION ENHANCEMTS 
                                                           36,086.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   22632    CORLEN VALLESE                         310 E ST. LOUIS AVE                                          
22-01574 07/12/22   1 SOCCER CAMP COACH                       475.00   T-03-56-190-011             Budget        Aprv    55     1
                                                                       RECREATION CENTER                       



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 8    
01:32 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Check No.   Check Date Vendor # Name                                   Street 1 of Address to be printed on Check
 PO #    Enc Date Item Description                    Payment Amt      Charge Account              Account Type  Status Seq  Acct
                                                                       Description

                                                              475.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   23055    CITY OF WILDWOOD                       ATTN: FINANCE OFFICE                                         
22-01484 07/01/22   1 AGREEMENT: TAX ASSESSOR              17,059.20   2-01-20-150-028             Budget        Aprv     3     1
                                                                       ASMT OF TX - OTHER PROF/CONS            
                                                           17,059.20 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   23071    WILLIAMS SCOTSMAN, INC                 901 S BOND STREET                                            
22-01600 07/13/22   1 TRAILERS                              4,096.00   2-01-26-315-025             Budget        Aprv    71     1
                                                                       FLEET MAINT - LEASE PAYMENTS            
                                                            4,096.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   28063    WILLIAM F GREEN                        306 E 13TH AVE                                               
22-01504 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                   400.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv     8     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
22-01585 07/12/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  200.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    61     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              600.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   29523    PREMIER ORTHOPAEDICS                   352 S DELSEA DR SUITE C                                      
22-01640 07/14/22   1 Terri Delvicario MMI                    800.00   2-01-20-100-028             Budget        Aprv    85     1
                                                                       GEN ADM - PROF/ CONSULTANT              
                                                              800.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   32304    DAVID CAMARADA                         555 ELLIOT DR                                                
22-01514 07/05/22   1 VOL.  STIPEND- MAY 22                    50.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    17     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
22-01592 07/12/22   1 VOL STIPEND -JUNE 2022                  400.00   2-01-25-265-095             Budget        Aprv    68     1
                                                                       Fire- Volunteer stipends                
                                                              450.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   39035    ROBERT GALATI                          144 SHORELAND CIRCLE                                         
22-01423 06/20/22   1 Reimbursement                           450.00   2-01-25-240-093             Budget        Aprv     2     1
                                                                       POLICE - MEDICAL EXPENSES               
                                                              450.00 
 
Dir Dep     07/19/22   6244     PATRICK M FLYNN                        2004 NEW YORK  AVENUE                                        
22-01544 07/08/22   1 Lunch Reimbursment                      205.26   2-01-25-240-042             Budget        Aprv    30     1
                                                                       POLICE - EDUCATION & TRAINING           
                                                              205.26 
 

                        Count    Line Items                Amount
Direct Deposit:            58           114            336,381.72 
 
There are NO errors or warnings in this listing.



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 9    
01:32 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

Totals by Year-Fund
Fund Description                      Fund        Budget Total    Revenue Total        G/L Total            Total 

 
                                      2-01          148,569.66             0.00             0.00       148,569.66                   
 
                                      C-04          125,003.06             0.00             0.00       125,003.06                   
 
                                      T-03           40,208.00             0.00             0.00        40,208.00                   
 
                   Total Of All Funds:              313,780.72             0.00             0.00       313,780.72                   



 
July 14, 2022                                          CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD                                         Page No: 10   
01:32 PM                                      Check Payment Batch Verification Listing                                              
 

         Project Description                              Project No.         Project Total

 
         SJ GAS CO INFRAST. IMPROVEMENT                   SO 412                  22,206.50                                         
 
         VERIZON:VARIOUS STREET OPENING                   SO 570                     277.50                                         
 
         CONCEALMENT POLE                                 SO 642                      97.50                                         
 
         211-213 Anglesea drive                           SO 644                      19.50                                         
 
                                Total Of All Projects:                            22,601.00                       

                                                        G/L Posting Summary
 
Account                      Description                                    Debits           Credits
 
2-01-101-01-100-011          CASH-CURRENT FUND                                  0.00        148,569.66 
2-01-201-20-000-000          CURRENT YEAR APPROPRIATIONS                  148,569.66              0.00 
                                     Totals for Fund 2-01   :             148,569.66        148,569.66                              
 
2-03-101-01-000-012          CASH-DEVELOPER DEPOSITS                            0.00         22,601.00 
2-03-101-01-000-024          CASH - RECREATION CTR TRUST FD                     0.00          4,122.00 
2-03-101-01-000-035          CASH-MEMORIALS/BEAUTIFICATION ENHANCEMT            0.00         36,086.00 
2-03-286-56-856-801          RESERVE FOR DEVELOPERS DEPOSIT                22,601.00              0.00 
2-03-286-56-862-801          RESERVE FOR RECREATION CTR                     4,122.00              0.00 
2-03-286-56-868-804          RESERVES-MEMORIALS/BEAUTIFICATION ENHA        36,086.00              0.00 
                                     Totals for Fund 2-03   :              62,809.00         62,809.00                              
 
2-04-101-01-000-000          CASH-CAPITAL FUND                                  0.00        125,003.06 
2-04-215-55-900-000          IMPROVEMENT AUTHORIZATIONS                   125,003.06              0.00 
                                     Totals for Fund 2-04   :             125,003.06        125,003.06                              
 
                                                 Grand Total:             336,381.72        336,381.72                              




